PORT OF KINGSTON

Serving what matters today, with a view for tomorrow.

Port of Kingston Board of Commissioners
Regular Meeting
Agenda

July 28, 2021, at 1:00 pm

Meeting called by: Port of Kingston Commissioners
Type of meeting: Regular Meeting
Location: Hybrid

A. In Person:
Village Green Community Center
Windermere Room
26159 Dulay Rd NE
Kingston, WA 98346
or
B. Virtual via Zoom:
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89627780265
Dial by your location 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)

Welcome to the July 28, 2021 Regular Meeting of the Port of Kingston Commission. Comments
from those in attendance will be allowed upon recognition of the Chair. Please identify yourself
by stating your name.

If you would like to be added to the agenda for a future meeting, please contact the Port Office
at least one week prior to the regularly scheduled meeting. Please submit your documents
and/or presentations at the time of your request.

This is a preliminary agenda and is subject to change.
Agenda Topics
1. CALLTO ORDER

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89627780265

PORT OF KINGSTON

Serving what matters today, with a view for tomorrow.

4. PUBLIC COMMENT
Citizens may address the Commission regarding any item related to Port business,

including items on the agenda.

5. CONSENT AGENDA
These matters are routine and will be enacted by one motion of the Commission with no

separate discussion. If discussion is desired, that item may be removed from the Consent
Agenda by a Commissioner.

Approve June 23, 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes
Approve June 29, 2021 Special Meeting Minutes
Approve July 6, 2021 Special Meeting Minutes

o0 wp

Approve June 2021 Warrants

6. ACTION ITEMS
A. Approve Port Employee Handbook

7. PUBLIC COMMENT
Citizens may address the Commission regarding any item related to Port business, including
items on the agenda.

8. COMMISSIONER REPORTS
9. STAFF REPORTS
10. NEXT REGULAR MEETING:
Wednesday August 25, 2021, at 6:30 p.m. Hybrid (Zoom & Village Greens Community

Center)

11. ADJOURN



PORT OF KINGSTON
Serving what matters today, with a view for tomorrow.

Port of Kingston Board of Commissioners
Regular Meeting Minutes
June 23, 2021, at 6:30 pm

Meeting called by: Port of Kingston Type of meeting: Special Meeting
Commissioners Location: Virtual via Zoom
Commissioners Present: Staff Present:

Laura Gronnvoll Greg Englin

Steve Heacock Ray Carpenter

Mary McClure Tarrah Dofelmier

1. CALLTO ORDER
Commissioner Gronnvoll called the meeting called to order at 6:31 p.m.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Motion: Approve the agenda as written.
Moved: Commissioner McClure
Second: Commissioner Heacock
Discussion: Commissioner McClure requested that Executive Director Englin
provide a report on the 4t of July Celebration in his regular staff report.

v" Vote: Pass 3-0

4. CONSENT AGENDA
A. Approve May 26, 2021, Regular Meeting Minutes

B. Approve June 4, 2021, Special Meeting Minutes
C. Approve May 2021 Warrants

Motion: Approve the agenda as written.
Moved: Commissioner McClure
Second: Commissioner Heacock

v' Vote: Pass 3-0

5. PUBLIC COMMENT
No Public Comment

6. COMMISSIONER REPORTS



PORT OF KINGSTON

Serving what matters today, with a view for tomorrow.

Commissioner McClure:
1. Commissioner McClure has been working closely with KCAC (Kingston Citizen

Advisory Council) Transportation Committee chairs to develop a full report to
present at the next full Council meeting.

She has been conducting a series of in-depth interviews with Keith Gurnee. They
have completed 13 of 18 interviews, with the remaining 5 scheduled for
tomorrow. She added that this is an incredibly valuable process. We've identified
others that we feel would be of value to go through the interview process with
Keith and the other commissioners.

She has developed a community outreach plan to include a survey to Port
residents. She is working with Parametrix on a design focused on the park district
which includes demographics, use of facilities, anticipated changes, and desired
improvements.

She is working on a rack card for the Kingston Public Market which will include a
list of restaurants, stores, trails, facilities, marina, and personal services. Given
the number of people that come to the market are new residents or marina
users, a partnership with the Port on the cards would good news for Kingston.

Commissioner Heacock:

1.

3.

Commissioner Heacock has been participating in the Public Market Committee
meetings and has been actively involved with the market setup on Sundays. He
added, it is refreshing to see how the Port is used by so many including locals
and first-time visitors.

He is a regular participant of the Parks Trails and Open Space Committee
meetings where topics include walkability, parking, and transportation. He
actively assists with trail maintenance and activities.

The School District gave a presentation at the recent KCAC meeting he attended
to discuss COVID and future plans.

STAFF REPORTS

Administrative Services Manager, Tarrah Dofelmier:

1.

The Port recently hired a new Customer Service Coordinator. Tarrah is working
with her on training and onboarding and added we are excited to have her.

She is participating with the Controller on cross-training and DRS (Department of
Retirement Services) courses.

Port leadership has decided to move forward with Purchasing Smart Sheet
Software. We will begin by using the software for project management, event
coordination and maintenance requests.



4.

PORT OF KINGSTON
Serving what matters today, with a view for tomorrow.

Ray, Tarrah & Greg have been working with the 4t of July Committee to
coordinate that event and as well as booking bands for the upcoming concert
series which is planned for late August — September.

Greg and Tarrah are working with web developers to finalize the Greater
Kingston Chamber of Commerce website.

Harbormaster, Ray Carpenter:

1.

The Public Market is going well, lots of vendors so much energy, there are many
new faces including people traveling over by ferry. Ray gave thanks to Port staff
who have stepped up and done a tremendous job.

Ray and Tarrah met with Tony Clark to coordinate and plan the 4% of July
Celebration, including coordinating garbage services and reaching out to KC
Health District and KC Sheriff.

The new Port Controller is doing a great job and the new Customer Service
Coordinators are fitting in very well. The Port is lucky to have them all.

Roche Harbor Yacht Club visited last weekend and the reviews were off the
charts. It was a pleasant experience and received great feedback from all.

Crab opener going on now with 8 tribes from all over. Low tides are making
things more difficult.

Ray, Tarrah and Greg are planning the Kingston Cove Concerts, including finding
bands, coordinating sound, sponsorships, communications, and beer garden.

Executive Director, Greg Englin:

1.

Financial Report: we will move it to next month as we are reviewing everything

back to the beginning of the year.

Greater Kingston Chamber of Commerce Update

o The Chamber is open for businesses.

o The Chamber board members are continuing our membership drive.

e Micki Monroe has relinquished her role as President but has stayed on the
board and Brenda Franklin has stepped into that role as President.

o Port staff have been working on developing a new website for the Chamber
and we expect it will go live by the end of next week. We have been working
with Anna Cherkasov of Alice in Wonderland to develop the website. Tarrah
has been instrumental in every aspect of its development.

« The Chamber is looking to hire an administrative staff person and any
candidates should reach out to Brenda Franklin or Shana Ramirez who serve
as the Executive committee.

Grant Updates: We are waiting to hear the status from the State of Washington’s

Recreation and Conservation Office regarding the 3 grants we applied for. We

should know status for two of the grants by the end of June.



PORT OF KINGSTON

Serving what matters today, with a view for tomorrow.

4. SR104 Holding Lanes & ATMS: A partner workshop during the week of June 7th is
being scheduled and the FINAL DRAFT REPORT is being written as we speak.
We now have:

30% (at least) design and cost estimates for 1-11 holding lanes

ROM for stormwater issues and costs

60%-90% design and cost estimate for an Active Traffic Management
System (ATMS)

SR104 shoulder widening costs were not included though WSDOT or
Kitsap County could generate this estimate

We are ready to apply for funding regardless of source

The project is shovel ready and can be implemented in a phased manner
if needed

5. Fourth Of July Update:

We will be participating in the parade and have applied and been
approved to participate.

The Port has traditionally contributed to the Fourth of July and this year
will be no different. Currently a contribution of $1000 has already been
approved for this year.

The Port will contribute staff time, utilities, and end up with garbage as
well.

Fireworks are being loaded out at another facility which was preferred by
the commission, staff, and the Fire Marshall’s office. | think that will be
the best practice going forward. Most importantly there will be no
shortage of candy for all the kids!

6. Kingston Public Market: The Public Market will really begin to gain momentum
and increased energy as the state opens and the weather gets warmer.

8. PUBLIC COMMENT
No Public Comment

9. NEXT REGULAR MEETING: Wednesday July 28, 2021, at 1:00 p.m. Hybrid

10. ADJOURN

Motion: Adjourn meeting at 7:05 p.m.
Moved: Commissioner McClure
Second: Commission Heacock



PORT OF KINGSTON

Serving what matters today, with a view for tomorrow.

Laura Gronnvoll, Commissioner

Steve Heacock, Commissioner
Attest:

Greg Englin, Executive Director

Mary McClure, Commissioner



PORT OF KINGSTON

Serving what matters today, with a view for tomorrow.

Port of Kingston Board of Commissioners
Special Meeting Minutes
June 29, 2021, at 9:30 am

Meeting called by: Port of Kingston Type of meeting: Special Meeting
Commissioners Location: Port Conference Room

Commissioners Present:

Laura Gronnvoll Staff Present:
Steve Heacock Greg Englin
Mary McClure

1. CALLTO ORDER

2. RECESS TO EXECUTIVE SESSION

a. The Commission will now adjourn into an executive session at 9:36 a.m. to review
the performance of a public employee. Pursuant to RCW 42.30.110 (g) To evaluate

the qualifications of an applicant for public employment or to review the
performance of a public employee. However, subject to RCW 42.30.140(4),
discussion by a governing body of salaries, wages, and other conditions of

employment to be generally applied within the agency shall occur in a meeting open
to the public, and when a governing body elects to take final action hiring, setting

the salary of an individual employee or class of employees, or discharging or

disciplining an employee, that action shall be taken in a meeting open to the public.

b. The executive session is expected to last 60 minutes.
c. Executive sessions are not open to the public.

d. After the executive session, the Commission will reconvene to the public portion of

the commission meeting.

3. RECONVENE TO SPECIAL MEETING
Reconvene from Exec Session at 10:43 a.m.

4. NEXT REGULAR MEETING: Wednesday July 28, 2021, at 1:00 p.m. Hybrid

5. ADJOURN
Motion: Adjourn meeting at 10:43 a.m.
Moved: Commissioner McClure
Second: Commissioner Heacock



PORT OF KINGSTON

Serving what matters today, with a view for tomorrow.

Laura Gronnvoll, Commissioner

Steve Heacock, Commissioner

Attest:

Mary McClure, Commissioner Greg Englin, Executive Director



PORT OF KINGSTON

Serving what matters today, with a view for tomorrow.

Port of Kingston Board of Commissioners
Special Meeting Minutes
July 6, 2021, at 4:00 p.m.

Meeting called by: Port of Kingston Location: Port Conference Room
Commissioners
Type of meeting: Special Meeting

Commissioners Present: Staff Present:
Laura Gronnvoll Greg Englin
Steve Heacock

Mary McClure

1. CALLTO ORDER

2. RECESS TO EXECUTIVE SESSION

a. The Commission will now adjourn into an executive session at 4:04 p.m. to review
the performance of a public employee. Pursuant to RCW 42.30.110 (g) To evaluate

the qualifications of an applicant for public employment or to review the
performance of a public employee. However, subject to RCW 42.30.140(4),
discussion by a governing body of salaries, wages, and other conditions of

employment to be generally applied within the agency shall occur in a meeting open
to the public, and when a governing body elects to take final action hiring, setting
the salary of an individual employee or class of employees, or discharging or
disciplining an employee, that action shall be taken in a meeting open to the public.

b. The executive session is expected to last 60 minutes.
c. Executive sessions are not open to the public.

d. After the executive session, the Commission will reconvene to the public portion of

the commission meeting.

3. RECONVENE TO SPECIAL MEETING
Reconvene from Exec Session at 5:32 p.m.

4. NEXT REGULAR MEETING: Wednesday July 28, 2021, at 1:00 p.m. Hybrid

5. ADJOURN
Motion: Adjourn meeting at 5:32 p.m.
Moved: Commissioner McClure
Second: Commissioner Heacock



PORT OF KINGSTON

Serving what matters today, with a view for tomorrow.

Laura Gronnvoll, Commissioner

Steve Heacock, Commissioner

Attest:

Mary McClure, Commissioner Greg Englin, Executive Director



Port of Kingston Warrant List

We, the undersigned Board of Commissioners of the Port of Kingston, Kitsap County Washington, do
hereby certify the merchandise for services hereinafter specified have been received and the warrants
listed below are approved for payment in the amount of $16,384.17 from the Port of Kingston, Marina
Revenue Fund, the 3rd day of June 2021.

Laura Gronnvoll, Commissioner

Steve Heacock, Commissioner

Mary McClure, Commissioner

We, the undersigned, do hereby certify under penalty or perjury that the materials have been furnished,
the services rendered, or the labor performed as described herein and that the claims is a just, due and
unpaid obligation against the Port of Kingston and that | am authorized to authenticate and certify to

said claim. é
] . ,
AA (/@Z ey yyyy
Audra Trainer, Controller
Date Warrant Amount Vendor
6/3/2021 35349 $1,863.90 CRAIN PEST CONTROL, LLC
6/3/2021 35350 $670.00 HEARTHSTONE CPA GROUP PS
6/3/2021 35351 $152.60 PENINSULA FIRE INC.
6/3/2021 35352 $34.88 VERN'S ORGANIC TOPSOIL
6/3/2021 353563 $646.05 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES
6/3/2021 35354 $41.29 BLUE SKY PRINTING
6/3/2021 35355 $338.02 BMC DBA KINGSTON LUMBER SUPPLY CO. INC.
6/3/2021 35356 $1,075.43 HENERY HARDWARE
6/3/2021 35357 $2,552.00 OLYMPIC ESD 114
6/3/2021 35358 $9,010.00 PERTEET

$16,384.17




Port of Kingston Warrant List

We, the undersigned Board of Commissioners of the Port of Kingston, Kitsap County Washington, do
hereby certify the merchandise for services hereinafter specified have been received and the warrants
listed below are approved for payment in the amount of $29,431.42 from the Port of Kingston, Marina

Revenue Fund, the 4th day of June 2021.

Laura Gronnvoll, Commissioner

Steve Heacock, Commissioner

Mary McClure, Commissioner

We, the undersigned, do hereby certify under penalty or perjury that the materials have been furnished,
the services rendered, or the labor performed as described herein and that the claims is a just, due and
unpaid obligation against the Port of Kingston and that | am authorized to authenticate and certify to

said claim.
Y .
/zlé (&a [N ALfL
Audra Trainer, Controller
Date Warrant Amount Vendor
6/4/2021 35364 $27,258.18 PETROCARD INC
6/4/2021 35365 $47.25 PREMIER RENTALS LLC
6/4/2021 35366 $1,627.17 SME SOLUTIONS LLC
6/4/2021 35367 $141.34 TACOMA SCREW PRODUCTS
6/4/2021 35368 $357.48 ULINE

$29,431.42




Port of Kingston Warrant List

We, the undersigned Board of Commissioners of the Port of Kingston, Kitsap County Washington, do
hereby certify the merchandise for services hereinafter specified have been received and the warrants
listed below are approved for payment in the amount of $58,206.02 from the Port of Kingston, Marina

Revenue Fund, the 15th day of June 2021.

Laura Gronnvoll, Commissioner

Steve Heacock, Commissioner

Mary McClure, Commissioner

We, the undersigned, do hereby certify under penalty or perjury that the materials have been furnished,
the services rendered, or the labor performed as described herein and that the claims is a just, due and
unpaid obligation against the Port of Kingston, and that | am authorized to authenticate and certify to

said claim.

Date
6/15/2021
6/15/2021
6/15/2021
6/15/2021
6/15/2021
6/15/2021
6/15/2021
6/15/2021
6/15/2021
6/15/2021
6/15/2021
6/15/2021
6/15/2021
6/15/2021

é)’éz /ﬁ a I leiiie

Warrant
35374
35375
35376
35377
35378
35379
35380
35381
35382
35383
35384
35385
35386
35387

Audra Trainer, Controller

Amount
$5,444.94
$217.89
$784.14
$109.00
$790.32
$2,000.00
$15,000.00
$475.00
$5,923.56
$25,909.73
$47.25
$184.66
$322.03
$997.50

$57,208.52

Vendor

CHEMLICK SITKIN & DAVIS

CHS

DOGPOOPBAGS.COM

AUSTIN GOFF

HENERY HARDWARE

KEDA

KINGSTON CHAMBER OF COMMERCE
NORTHWEST MARINE TRADE ASSOCIATION
PAPE MATERIAL HANDLING

PETROCARD INC

PREMIER RENTALS LLC

ULINE

VALLEY NURSERY

WASHINGTON PROJECT CONSULTANTS, PLLC.




Port of Kingston Warrant List

We, the undersigned Board of Commissioners of the Port of Kingston, Kitsap County Washington, do
hereby certify the merchandise for services hereinafter specified have been received and the warrants
listed below are approved for payment in the amount of $55,888.54 from the Port of Kingston, Marina

Revenue Fund, the 21st day of June 2021.

Laura Gronnvoll, Commissioner

Steve Heacock, Commissioner

Mary McClure, Commissioner

We, the undersigned, do hereby certify under penalty or perjury that the materials have been furnished,
the services rendered, or the labor performed as described herein and that the claims is a just, due and
unpaid obligation against the Port of Kingston and that [ am authorized to authenticate and certify to

said claim.

Date
6/21/2021
6/21/2021
6/21/2021
6/21/2021
6/21/2021
6/21/2021
6/21/2021
6/21/2021
6/21/2021
6/21/2021
6/2112021
6/21/2021
6/21/2021
6/21/2021
6/21/2021
6/21/2021
6/21/2021
6/21/2021
6/21/2021
6/21/2021

¥

é{%ééi A a i

Warrant
35388
35389
35390
35391
35392
35383
35394
35395
35396
35397
35398
35399
35400
35401
35402
35403
35404
35405
35406
35407

Audra Trainer, Controller

Amount
$427.01
$34.76
$783.10
$265.86
$40.00
$100.27
$1,238.10
$316.87
$10,216.09
$2,210.39
$1,371.12
$321.54
$455.00
$30,008.61
$244.42
$588.60
$455.00
$1,055.82
$5,700.00
$55.98

$55,888.54

Vendor

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES

BLUE SKY PRINTING

CARDMEMBER SERVICES

COMCAST

DEPARTMENT OF RETIREMENT SYSTEMS
FISHERIES SUPPLY

GLOBAL EQUIPMENT COMPANY

HENERY HARDWARE

KITSAP BANK VISA

KITSAP COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS

LAURA GRONNVOLL

NEW PIG CORPORATION

NORTHWEST TANK & ENVIRON. SERVICES
PETROCARD INC

SIGNS OF SEATTLE

VALLEY NURSERY

WASHINGON PUBLIC PORTS ASSOCIATION
WASTE MANAGEMENT

WENDIE MCDONALD BOOKKEEPING
WESTBAY AUTO PARTS




Port of Kingston Warrant List

We, the undersigned Board of Commissioners of the Port of Kingston, Kitsap County Washington, do
hereby certify the merchandise for services hereinafter specified have been received and the warrants
listed below are approved for payment in the amount of $33,900.04 from the Port of Kingston, Marina

Revenue Fund, the 25th day of June 2021.

Laura Gronnvoll, Commissioner

Steve Heacock, Commissioner

Mary McClure, Commissioner

We, the undersigned, do hereby certify under penalty or perjury that the materials have been furnished,
the services rendered, or the labor performed as described herein and that the claims is a just, due and
unpaid obligation against the Port of Kingston and that | am authorized to authenticate and certify to

said claim.
(idog Tuce
(dri Thasue ,
Audra Trainer, Controller
Date Warrant Amount Vendor
6/25/2021 35408 $170.57 STEPHEN KLEPPER
6/25/2021 35409 $26.00 ALL SHRED
6/25/2021 35410 $41.84 HENERY HARDWARE
6/25/2021 35411 $236.53 LAURA GRONNVOLL
6/25/2021 35412 $600.00 JASPER STENSTROM
6/25/2021 35413 $29,272.92 PETROCARD INC
6/25/2021 35414 $3,162.65 PUGET SOUND ENERGY
6/25/2021 35415 $179.97 RAYMOND CARPENTER
6/25/2021 35416 $209.56 STAPLES ADVANTAGE

$33,900.04




Port of Kingston

Payment Voucher
Post Office Box 559
Kingston, WA 98346
Kitsap County, WA 6/10/2021 (Disbursement Date)

We, the undersigned Board of Commissioners of the Port of Kingston, Kitsap County Washington do hereby
certify that the merchandise or services hereinafter specified have been received and that the vouchers listed
below are approved for payment in the amount of $36,356.54 from the Port of Kingston, Marina Revenue

Fund, on 6/10/2021. (Receipt Date)

Laura Gronnvoll, Commissioner

Attest: -

Steve Heacock, Commissioner (:7 / -
Ludis Thanen

Controller, Audra Trainer

Mary McClure, Commissioner

Type Claimant Amount
EFT Anderson, Gregory $848.89
EFT Carpenter, Raymond $3,274.68
EFT Dofelmier, Tarrah $2,298.06
EFT Englin, Gregory $2,078.33
EFT Ferguson, Ashley $1,887.17
EFT Goff, Austin $1,982.44
EFT Grandt, Torey $2,242.74
EFT Krogh, Joseph $1,886.78
EFT McClure, Mary $1,480.50
EFT Moneypenny, Patrick $507.93
EFT Orcutt, Rose $310.77
EFT Poole, Lester $878.14
EFT Robles, Marvin $1,675.70
EFT Swanson, Jeanette $1,805.88
EFT Trainer, Audra $3,232.63
EFT US Treasury Taxes $9,897.56
EFT Tax Adjustments $0.00
EFT Service Fees $68.34
$36,356.54
Columbia Bank Electronic Payroll QuickBooks Detail attached

[, the undersigned, do hereby certify under penalty or petjury that the materials have been furnished, the
services rendered, the labor performed, or the expense incurred as described herein and that the claim is
a just, due and unpaid obligation against the Port of Kingston and that | am authorized to authenticate and

cerﬁo said claim.
M4 Thoaiiie.

Controller, Audra Trainer

ACH




QuickB

ooks Payroll Services

Sent: 06/10/2021 ‘
Subject: Details of Funds to be Withdrawn
Actual funds to be withdrawn:

Payroll service fee $68.34
Direct Deposit $26390.64
Taxes $9897.56
Total payment $36356.54

to be withdrawn from 101-

40-00 Columbia Bank.

Payroll Run Summary for 06/15/2021:

Paychecks Gross Net Direct
Wages Pay Deposit

Total 37,537.06 0.00 26,390.64

DD1718 ANDERSON, GREGORY E. 973.35 0.00 848 .89

DD1719 CARPENTER, RAYMOND A. 4,375.00 0.00 3,274.68

bDD1720 DOFELMIER, TARRAH D 3,125.00 0.00 2,298.06

bp1721 ENGLIN, GREGORY L. 5,537.38 0.00 2,078.33

DD1722 FERGUSON, ASHLEY R 2,426.50 0.00 1,887.17

DD1723 GOFF, AUSTIN O. 2,756.00 0.00 1,982 .44

DD1724 GRANDT, TOREY L 2,833.33 0.00 2,242 .74

DD1725 KROGH, JOSEPH S. 2,548.00 0.00 1,886.78

DD1726 MCCLURE, MARY S. 1,693.00 0.00 1,480.50

DD1727 MONEYPENNY, PATRICK T. 555.42 0.00 507.93

DD1728 ORCUTT, ROSE K 368.00 0.00 310.77

DD1729 POOLE, JR., LESTER O. 1,066.75 0.00 878.14

DD1730 ROBLES, MARVIN F. 2,200.00 0.00 1,675.70

DD1731 SWANSON, JEANETTE E. 2,496.00 0.00 1,805.88

DD1732 TRAINER, AUDRA F 4,583.,33 0.00 3,232.63

Tax Adjustments:

Tax Amount

Medicare Company -3$0.01

Medicare Employee -$0.01

Total: -$0.02

Added employee: ORCUTT, ROSE K

Modified employee: Coulter, Scott E

Modified employee: Berry, Thomas F

Modified employee: Bradley, Jeffery S

Modified employee: Carlson, Ross J

Modified employee: Clark, Edward A

Modified employee: Yu, Philip D

Modified employee: Bookey, Michael T

Modified employee: Mc Clane, Myriaha C

Modified employee: HELBOCK, ROBERT P.

Modified employee: CARPENTER, RAYMOND A.

Modified employee: Hill, Willis A

Modified employee: Van Vliet, Kevin

Modified employee: Osnes, Jan E .

Page 1




Port of Kingston
Payment Voucher

Post Office Box 559
Kingston, WA 98346

Kitsap County, WA 6/28/2021 (Disbursement Date)

We, the undersigned Board of Commissioners of the Port of Kingston, Kitsap County Washington do hereby
certify that the merchandise or services hereinafter specified have been received and that the vouchers listed
below are approved for payment in the amount of $38,681.06 from the Port of Kingston, Marina Revenue

Fund, on 6/28/2021. (Receipt Date)

Laura Gronnvoll, Commissioner

N

Attest:

Steve Heacock, Commissioner /ZL (Z’C[ '7“,2 AU
£/ W ]l 4 ;

Controller, Audra Trainer

Mary McClure, Commissioner

Type Claimant Amount
EFT Anderson, Gregory $497.90
EFT Carpenter, Raymond $3,274.68
EFT Dofelmier, Tarrah $2,298.06
EFT Englin, Gregory $2,078.32
EFT Ferguson, Ashley $1,591.26
EFT Goff, Austin $1,710.38
EFT Grandt, Torey $2,242.75
EFT Gronnvoll, Laura $1,183.07
EFT Heacock, Steve $1,491.69
EFT Krogh, Joseph $1,626.78
EFT McClure, Mary $1,375.27
EFT Moneypenny, Patrick $507.94
EFT Orcutt, Rose $1,556.28
EFT Poole, Lester $757.77
EFT Robles, Marvin $1,364.36
EFT Swanson, Jeanette $1,558.58
EFT Trainer, Audra $3,232.63
EFT US Treasury Taxes $10,333.26
EFT Tax Adjustments $0.08
EFT Service Fees $0.00
$38,681.06
Columbia Bank Electronic Payroll QuickBooks Detall attached

[, the undersigned, do hereby certify under penalty or perjury that the materials have been furnished, the
services rendered, the labor performed, or the expense incurred as described herein and that the claim is
a just, due and unpaid obligation against the Port of Kingston and that | am authorized to authenticate and
certify to said claim.

[/(,Z{ z’/% a Jo ST

Controller, Audra Trainer

ACH




Date:

Subject:

QuickB

06/28/2021 v

Details of Funds to be

Withdrawn

ooks Payroll Services

Funds to be withdrawn for payment by Service
(not including applicable fees):

Payroll Taxes:
Tax Adjustments*;

Employee

Direct Deposit:

$10,333.26
$0.08
$28,347.72

Payroll Run Summary for 06/29/2021:

Paychecks Gross
Wages
Total 39,788.49
DD1733 ANDERSON, GREGORY E. 593.28
DD1734 CARPENTER, RAYMOND A. 4,375.00
DD1735 DOFELMIER, TARRAH D 3,125.00
DD1736 ENGLIN, GREGORY L. 5,537.38
DD1737 FERGUSON, ASHLEY R 2,024.00
DD1738 GOFF, AUSTIN 0. 2,332.00
DD1739 GRANDT, TOREY L 2,833.33
DD1740 GRONNVOLL, LAURA E. 1,437.00
DD1741 HEACOCK, STEVE 1,821.00
DD1742 KROGH, JOSEPH S. 2,192.75
DD1743 MCCLURE, MARY S. 1,565.00
DD1744 MONEYPENNY, PATRICK J. 555.42
DD1745 ORCUTT, ROSE K 2,024.00
DD1746 POOLE, JR., LESTER 0. 918.00
DD1747 ROBLES, MARVIN F. 1,760.00
DD1748 SWANSON, JEANETTE E. 2,112.00
DD1749 TRAINER, AUDRA F 4,583.33
Tax Adjustments:
Tax Amount
Medicare Company $0.02
Medicare Employee $0.02
Social Security Company $0.01
Social Security Employee $0.01

WA - Employment Admin. Fund $0.01
WA - Unemployment Company

Total: $0.08
Modified employee: CARPENTER, RAYMOND A.
Modified employee: GOFF, AUSTIN O.
Modified employee: ANDERSON, GREGORY E.
Modified employee: POOLE, JR., LESTER 0.
Modified employee: ROBLES, MARVIN F.
Modified employee: MCCLURE, MARY S.
Modified employee: SWANSON, JEANETTE E.
Modified employee: KROGH, JOSEPH S.
Modified employee: GRONNVOLL, LAURA E.
Modified employee: HEACOCK, STEVE

COCOCODOOODOOOOCOOOOOC

Direct
Deposit

28,347,
497.
3,274,
2,298.
2,078.
1,591,
1,710.
2,242,
1,183,
1,491,
1,626.
1,375,
507.
1,556.
757.
1,364,
1,558,
3,232.

Page 1




Port of Kingston

Employee Handbook

(Effective Date: August 1, 2021)

Page | 1



ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT
OF
PERSONNEL MANUAL
AND
AT-WILL EMPLOYMENT

My signature below indicates that | have received a copy of and have read and understood
the Port of Kingston Personnel Manual.

This Handbook explains what | may expect from the Port, as well as what will be expected
of me. The Handbook is designed to familiarize me with the Port major policies and to
answer common questions posed by employees. It cannot, however, anticipate every
situation or answer every question about my employment. It is a summary of the Port’s
personnel policies, benefits and work rules. The Port operates with an "open door" policy,
and | have been encouraged to ask questions if there are policies and procedures | don't
understand.

| understand that my employment with the Port of Kingston is “at-will”, which means that
my employment may be terminated by the Port, at any time, with or without cause and with
or without prior notice and, likewise, that | can choose to leave the Port's employment at
any time, with or without prior notice.

The contents of this manual do not constitute a contract of employment between me and
the Port for any definite term of employment or a guarantee of specific treatment in specific
situations. | also understand that these policies may be changed from time to time by the
Port Commission and that | will be notified of any changes.

Signature Date

Page | 2



Table of Contents

Subject & Section Number Section

Introduction

Definitions 1.00
Recruitment, Hiring, Assignment, and Termination 2.00
Recruitment — 2.10
Hiring — 2.20

Assignment — 2.30

At-Will Employment — 2.40
Termination —2.50

Equal Employment Opportunity — 2.60
Americans with Disabilities Act — 2.70

Employee Education 3.00
Policy — 3.10
Purpose — 3.20
Job Related Short Courses or Seminars — 3.30
Continuing Education Leading to a Degree — 3.40
Payment for Reimbursement of Tuition — 3.50
Class and Seminar Scheduling — 3.60

Employee Personnel Files 4.00
Policy — 4.10
Purpose — 4.20
Responsibility — 4.30
Personnel Files — 4.40
Access to Information in Personnel Files — 4.50

Leave of Absence with Pay 5.00
Policy — 5.10
Purpose — 5.20
Bereavement Leave — 5.30
Court Appearances and Jury Duty — 5.40
Emergency — 5.50
Paid Military Leave — 5.60
Paid Sick, Vacation and Holiday Benefits — 5.70
Continuation of Benefits during Paid Leave — 5.80
Paid Family Medical Leave Act — 5.90

Leave of Absence without Pay 6.00
Policy — 6.10
Purpose — 6.20
Spouses of Military Persons Leave — 6.30
Military Leave — 6.40
Domestic Violence Leave — 6.50
Pregnancy Disability Leave — 6.60
Extended Authorized Absences without Pay — 6.70
Leave without Pay Approval — 6.80
Suspension of Benefits during Unpaid Leave — 6.90

Sick Leave 7.00
Policy — 7.10
Purpose — 7.20
Accrual, Rate of Pay and Carryover — 7.30
Payroll — 7.40
Page | 3



Table of Contents

Subject & Section Number

Section

Use of Sick Leave — 7.50

Partial Day Absences — 7.60

Reasonable Notice and Verification — 7.70
Advance Sick Leave — 7.80

Shared Leave — 7.90

Abuse of Sick Leave — 7.100

Unused Sick Leave —7.110

Retaliation Prohibited — 7.120

Family and Medical Leave of Absence (FMLA) & Washington
Family Leave Act (WFLA)

Purpose — 8.10

Eligibility — 8.20

Additional Leave Benefits — 8.30

Vacation Leave

Policy — 9.10

Purpose — 9.20

Accrual Rates — 9.30

Sick Leave — 9.40

Requests for Vacation Leave — 9.50

Vacation Leave Carryover — 9.60

Partial Day Absences — 9.70

Vacation Leave Allowances — 9.80
Minimum Vacation Leave — 9.81
Maximum Vacation Leave — 9.82

Cash Out of Vacation Hours — 9.90
Regular Full time Employees — 9.91
Regular Part time Employees — 9.92

Special Pay
Purpose — 10.10
Standby Pay — 10.20
Standby Pay Compensation Non-Exempt Employees — 10.21
Standby Pay Compensation Exempt Employees — 10.22
Call Out Pay — 10.30
Call Out Pay Minimum — 10.31
Call Out Pay Over Regular 40-hour work week — 10.32
Call Out Pay under Regular 40-hour work week — 10.33
Call Out Pay for Exempt Employees — 10.34
Call Out Pay for Non-Exempt Employees — 10.35
Temporary Promotion Pay — 10.40
Shift Differential — 10.50
Shift Differential Pay Approval — 10.51

Legal Holiday
Policy — 11.10
Purpose — 11.20
Holidays Observed — 11.30
Paid Holiday — 11.40
Authorization to Work the Holiday — 11.50
Floating Paid Holiday — 11.60

8.00

9.00

10.00

11.00

Page | 4



Table of Contents

Subject & Section Number Section

Floating Holiday Guidelines — 11.61
Paid Holiday in Conjunction with Vacation and Sick Leave — 11.70
Unpaid Holidays for Reasons of Faith, Conscience, or Religion—11.80
Guidelines for Submission/Approval of Leave Request —11.81

Overtime 12.00
Policy — 12.10
Overtime Approval — 12.20

Wages, Salaries and Pay Disbursal 13.00
Policy — 13.10

Timecards — 13.20

Pay Periods and Paydays — 13.30

Pay Disbursal — 13.40
Deferred Compensation Plan — 13.41
Garnishments — 13.42
Supplemental Insurance — 13.43

Employee Benefits 14.00
Policy — 14.10
Retirement Plan — 14.20
Worker’s Compensation Insurance — 14.30
Deferred Compensation — 14.40
Supplemental Insurance — 14.50

Employee Complaint and Grievance Policy 15.00
Policy — 15.10
Informal Process — 15.20
Formal Process — 15.30

Employee Performance 16.00
Policy — 16.10
Purpose — 16.20
Employee Discipline — 16.30
Forms of Discipline — 16.40
Verbal Reprimand — 16.41
Written Reprimand — 16.42
Suspension — 16.43
Demotion (in position or wage/salary) — 16.44
Discharge — 16.45

Work Performance Evaluations 17.00
Purpose — 17.10
Evaluations — 17.20
Use of Evaluations — 17.30
Special Evaluations — 17.40

Anti-Discrimination and Harassment 18.00
Policy — 18.10
Definitions — 18.20
Harassment — 18.21
Sexual Harassment — 18.22

Page | 5



Table of Contents

Subject & Section Number Section

Sexual Orientation, Gender Expression or Gender |dentity
Harassment — 18.23
Discrimination — 18.24

Procedures — 18.30

Drug Free Workplace Policy 19.00
Policy — 19.10
Applicability — 19.20
Violations — 19.30
Notification of Conviction — 19.40
Prescription or Over-the-Counter Medication — 19.50
Assistance — 19.60
Confidentiality — 19.70
Reasonable Suspicion — 19.80

Whistleblower Policy 20.00
Policy — 20.10
Definitions — 20.20
Reporting — 20.30
Retaliation — 20.40
Violations — 20.50

Travel Time 21.00
Policy — 21.10
Special Tasks —21.20
Voluntary Tasks —21.30

Preventing Workplace Violence 22.00
Policy — 22.10
Reporting — 22.20
Violation of Policy — 22.30

Appearance and Dress Code 23.00
General Clothing — 23.20
Administrative Staff — 23.21
Operations and Maintenance Staff — 23.22
Tattoos — 23.30
Accommodation — 23.40
Religious Accommodation — 23.41
Medical Accommodation — 23.42

Employee Recognition 24.00
Policy — 24.10
Purpose — 24.20
Employee Recognition — 24.30
Continuous Service Awards — 24.40
Employee Recognition Events — 24.50

Information Technology 25.00
Policy — 25.10
Employee Use of ITR for Business Purposes — 25.20
Employee Use of ITR for Minimal Personal or Non-Business
Purposes — 25.30

Page | 6



Table of Contents

Subject & Section Number Section

E-Mail — 25.40

Right to Audit Employee Use — 25.50

IT Manager Implements Security Measures for ITR Use — 25.60
Authorization Required for Specialized Use — 25.70
Employees/Users Protect Confidential Information — 25.80
Security Procedures — 25.90

Misuse of ITR —25.100

IT Manager Approves All Software — 25.110

Compliance with Software Licensing Requirements — 25.120
Internet for Business Use — 25.130

Executive Director’s Authority 26.00
Policy — 26.10

APPENDIX A — 2021 PORT ORGANIZATIONAL CHART

APPENDIX B - TELECOMMUTING POLICY

APPENDIX C — PET / SERVICE ANIMAL POLICY

APPENDIX D — DIVERSITY EQUITY AND INCLUSION POLICY

APPENDIX E — ABSENCE REPORTING POLICY

APPENDIX F - PANDEMIC FLU POLICY

Page | 7



Definitions — 1.00

The following definitions are for clarification of terms used in the Port Personnel Manual

Applicant A person who makes formal application for a
position.
At Will Either the employer or employee may terminate

employment at any time with or without cause.

Compensated Employment Time that an employee is paid for by either working
or taking paid leave.

Continuous Service Employment without interruption except for
authorized leaves of absence.

Disciplinary Action Imposition of certain personnel actions (i.e. —
reprimand, warning, suspension, dismissal,
demotion, etc.).

Employer Port of Kingston, also referred to as “The Port”.

Executive Director The person designated by the Port Commission to
carry out the Port’s policies and manage the day to
day operations of the Port.

Grievance An internal review process initiated by an employee
to help provide solutions to the employee’s work-
related concerns or problems.

Immediate Family Spouse, legal child, mother, father, sibling (natural
or adopted), grandparent, and grandchild.

In-House Assignment To encourage promotional opportunities in a higher
level position via lateral assignments / requests, the
Executive Director may announce that a position will
be filled by a Port of Kingston employee who may
be qualified and interested. Such an action may not
be advertised on the open market.

Layoff Involuntary termination of an employee for reasons
such as insufficient workload and/or funds.

Overtime For non-exempt employees, work in excess of forty
(40) hours in the Port’s designated work week,
exclusive of mealtime or leave.

Page | 8



Regular Position - Full Time

Regular Position - Part Time

Resignation

Seasonal Position

Supervisor, Manager or Director

Vacation

Work Week

A position requiring an employee to work thirty-two
(32) or more hours each week, in a position that is
designed to be year-round. At the determination of
the Port, some Port benefits may be available
subject to the terms, conditions, and limitations of
each benefit program.

A position requiring an employee to work less than
thirty-two (32) hours each week, in a position that is
designed to be year-round. Some Port benefits may
be available subject to the terms, conditions, and
limitations of each benefit program.

An employee’s voluntary action of terminating
employment.

A position paid on an hourly basis where employees
are called to work irregular schedules; these
employees are not “Regular” Port employees.
These positions are generally employed between
April and October of each year.

The individual to whom an employee is directly
responsible.

Scheduled workdays or hours that an employee, by
pre-arrangement, continues to receive the regular
rate of compensation without working the scheduled
hours.

For the purpose of calculating overtime hours, the

Port defines its standardized work week as Sunday
through Saturday.

Page | 9



Recruitment, Hiring, Assignment, and Termination — 2.00

The Port of Kingston acting by and through the Executive Director as authorized by the
Port Commission reserves the sole and exclusive right to recruit, promote, reassign,
discipline and terminate employees based on the need for work to be performed,
availability of revenues, effective performance, the ability of employees to perform the
essential functions of the position, and personal conduct of employees.

Recruitment — 2.10

Regular Employees — Except as provided otherwise in this Personnel Manual, the
Port of Kingston will provide for recruitment of all regular
employees through public advertisement in classified ads, Port
website and bulletin board, or any other means as appropriate.
Recruitment will be based upon the requirements of the
position as defined in the position description and by the
Department Manager/Supervisor. The position description and
factors used in hiring will be available during the recruitment
process.

The Port of Kingston is committed to providing promotion
opportunities to employees who have demonstrated exemplary
job progress and self-motivation. In an attempt to advise
employees of internal job openings, bulletins will be routed via
electronic mail or hard copy announcing job vacancies as
appropriate. Employees who meet the minimum standards and
are interested in being considered for posted positions should
contact the department supervisor for application details and
further information about the job. Positions posted are not
necessarily reserved or held exclusively for internal promotion.
The Port reserves the right to advertise and recruit the best
qualified person in the appropriate labor market, as determined
by the Executive Director.

Seasonal Employees — Consideration for job openings will be given to seasonal
employees who have satisfactorily completed his/her prior
assignments. Recruitment for new seasonal employees may
be advertised in classified ads, posted on the Port website and
bulletin board, or in any other location as appropriate.
Recruitment for seasonal employees will include position
descriptions and selection criteria.

The Port relies upon the accuracy of information contained in the employment
application, as well as the accuracy of other data presented and gathered during

Page | 10



the employment process. Any misrepresentation, falsification or material omission
may result in the Port’s exclusion of the applicant from further consideration for
employment, or, if the person has been hired, termination of employment.

To ensure that individuals joining the Port are well qualified and have the potential
to be productive and successful, the Port may check the employment references of
all applicants. Every offer of employment is contingent upon the appropriate
completion of a reference check.

Hiring — 2.20

Regular Employees — Hiring of regular employees will include initial screening of
applications by the Department Manager/Supervisor and/or

Executive Director. After screening of applications, the most
qualified candidates will be selected for interviews based upon
established criteria, information contained in applications, and
information obtained through reference checks. After the
interview process, the Department Manager/Supervisor will
forward their recommendations to the Executive Director for
final approval.

Seasonal Employees — Hiring of seasonal employees will be made by the
Department Manager/Supervisor in accordance with
established selection criteria and the requirements of the
position description. The Department Manager/Supervisor will
interview qualified candidates for each seasonal position, if
possible, using the selection criteria to screen submitted
applications.

The Port is committed to full compliance with the Federal immigration laws.
Therefore, the Port is required to verify the identity and legal ability to work of all
individuals before they can begin work. In keeping with this obligation, each
applicant must produce documentation that shows his or her identity and legal
authority to work. Each applicant must also attest to his or her legal authority to
work and identity on an I-9 Form provided by the Federal government. This
verification form will be distributed by the Port and must be completed as soon as
possible after an offer of employment is made. The form must be completed and
returned to the Port more than three (3) business days after an individual is hired.
All offers of hire and continued employment are conditioned on furnishing
satisfactory evidence of identity and legal authority to work in the United States.

Assignment — 2.30

After an employee has been recruited and hired, the employee will be

assigned employment responsibilities. The Executive Director will establish

an appropriate time period after the hiring date for an evaluation of the employee.
The Employee will be evaluated based upon actual performance of all of the

Page | 11



specific duties outlined in the position description.

After the initial hiring, the employee may undergo on the job training with other
employees and/or supervisor. The employee may be required to attend formal
training classes.

At-Will Employment- 2.40

Due to the nature of the Port’s business, the employment relationship is, and is
intended to be, at-will. The "at-will" employment relationship between you and
the Port means that employment at the Port is for no definite period of time and
may, regardless of the time and manner of payment of wages and salary, be
terminated at will. This means that either you or the Port may terminate the
employment relationship at any time, with or without reason, or with or without
advance notice.

There will be no agreement, express or implied, between you and the Port for
any specific period of employment, nor for continuing or long-term employment in
a specific position or at a specific rate of pay unless stated in writing and signed
by the Port. No officer, agent, or anyone else at the Port has the authority to
enter into any agreement contrary to the at-will relationship which cannot be
altered except in writing and signed by both the Port and you. The Port is not
bound by any oral promises concerning your length of employment.

Terms and conditions of employment with the Port may be modified at the sole
discretion of the Port with or without cause and with or without notice. Examples
of the type of terms and conditions of employment that are within the sole
discretion of the Port include, but are not limited to, the following: promotions;
demotions; transfers; hiring and discharge decisions; compensations; benefits;
qualifications; disciplines; layoffs or recalls; job duties and responsibilities;
reductions, cessations, or expansions of operations; sales, relocations, mergers,
or consolidations of operations; determinations concerning the use of equipment,
methods, or facilities; or any other terms and conditions that the Port may
determine to be necessary for the safe, efficient, and economic operation of its
business.

Termination — 2.50

Seasonal Employees — Seasonal employees will be terminated upon
completion of their work season or as determined by
the Department Manager/Supervisor, whichever is sooner.
The Department Manager/Supervisor is authorized to
terminate employees at any time for any reason, with or
without notice, as the employment relationship is “at will”.
Seasonal employees typically will not work more than six



months in a year.

Regular Employees — The Executive Director is authorized to terminate
employees at any time for any reason, with or without notice as
the employment relationship is “at will”.

Regular employees may be terminated for any reason,
including but not limited to, their position being eliminated by
Commission action, their inability to perform the essential
functions of their position with or without an accommodation,
and/or their performance does not meet acceptable
performance standards.

Also see Section 16.00, Employee Performance, for employee
disciplinary action and termination

Equal Employment Opportunity — 2.60

The Port of Kingston is an equal opportunity employer and all employment
decisions, including recruitment, hiring, assignments, termination, and offer of
benefits of employment, will be made without consideration of race, religion, sex,
sexual orientation, gender expression, gender identity, creed, national origin, age,
marital status, disability, veteran’s status or any other protected status. All
employment requirements mandated by State and Federal regulations will be
observed. This policy of nondiscrimination will prevail throughout every aspect of
the employment relationship, including recruitment, selection, compensation,
promotion, transfer, layoff, recall, termination, and dispute resolution.

All employees in the Port have the responsibility to follow and carry out the policy,
according to the spirit and intent of the Port’s equal employment commitment.
Management provides and supports a dispute resolution procedure for receiving
and resolving complaints alleging discriminatory practices in employment
relations. If you believe that you have been subjected to any form of unlawful
discrimination, promptly report the facts of the incident or incidents, names of the
individuals involved, and the names of any witnesses, the Port will promptly,
thoroughly and objectively investigate all claims of discrimination and ensure that
appropriate action will be taken. Any employee found to have engaged in any
form of unlawful discrimination would be subject to disciplinary action up to and
including termination. The Port will also take action to deter any future
discrimination. No action will be taken against any employee in any manner for
reporting or opposing any form of unlawful discrimination, including discrimination
by a guest, vendor or another non-employee.

Americans with Disabilities Act —2.70

Page | 13



The Americans with Disabilities Act (“ADA”) is a comprehensive federal civil rights law that
specifically protects individuals with physical and mental disabilities.

Individuals are protected under the ADA if any of the following conditions exist:

e They currently have a physical or mental condition that substantially limits their
ability to normally conduct a major life function (walking, seeing, hearing, breathing,
etc.);

e They have a history of such impairment; and/or,

e They are perceived to have such impairment.

The ADA also prohibits discrimination on the basis of an individual's relationship (parent,
sibling, child, spouse/significant other, etc.) to someone with a disability.

Reasonable accommodation is available to employees and otherwise qualified applicants
with known disabilities, as long as the accommodation doesn't cause undue hardship on
the Port. Individuals protected by the ADA should discuss their need for possible
accommodation with the Port. The applicant or employee should advise the Port what
accommodations he or she believes are needed in order to perform the job. The Port will
determine possible accommodations, if any. If accommodation is reasonable and will not
impose undue hardship upon the Port, the Port will make the accommodation.

The Port also reserves its right to require an employee to undergo a fithess-for-duty
medical examination, at the Port’s expense, if the Port believes or suspects that the
employee may not be able to perform the essential duties of the job or may not be able to
perform the essential duties of the job without risk of harm to him or herself or others. In
such an instance, the Port will so advise the employee, in writing, of the need for the
examination. Depending on the situation, the Port reserves the right to suspend
employment pending the results of the examination.

Page | 14



Employee Education - 3.00
Policy — 3.10

The Port of Kingston policy is to provide educational programs and assistance for
employee training and development, and to provide financial assistance through
reimbursement of educational costs for employees engaged in continuing education
at accredited institutions. Educational benefits are provided contingent upon
budgetary constraints and prior approval by the Executive Director based on benefit
and relevance to the Port of Kingston.

Purpose — 3.20

To establish criteria for regular employees to receive training or education tuition
assistance when the Executive Director determines such training or education is job
related.

Job Related Short Courses or Seminars — 3.30

The Port will pay all costs for an employee to attend a short course or seminar, if
the Executive Director determines the education or training is job related and the
costs therefore are reasonable.

Continuing Education Leading to a Degree — 3.40

The Port may reimburse up to 50% of tuition for those employees who are engaged
in undergraduate or graduate continuing education related to Port operations or the
employee’s current job duties. Generally, course schedule and workload must not
interfere with the employee’s job duties. Except as determined otherwise by the
Executive Director, to qualify for reimbursement, the employee must have been
employed by the Port continuously for at least one year in advance of course
enrollment. Tuition assistance may be available if the individual course or courses
are related to Port operations or the employee’s current job duties. Tuition
assistance requires the approval of the Executive Director. Reimbursement at a rate
greater than 50% may be approved by exception by the Executive Director.

Authorization for current tuition reimbursement is not a guarantee for future
reimbursement.

The Port invests in tuition assistance to employees with the expectation that the
investment will be returned through enhanced job performance. However, if an
employee voluntarily separates from the Port's employment within twenty four (24)
months of the last educational assistance payment, the employee may be required
to repay any tuition assistance payments made during the last twenty four (24)
months.

Page | 15



Payment for Reimbursement of Tuition — 3.50

The Port reimburses tuition to employees who were authorized tuition assistance
when the employee presents proof of payment and evidence of satisfactory
completion (a grade of “C” or better (2.0 or better on a 4 point scale), or “pass” if on
a pass/fail basis). Request for reimbursement must be made within thirty (30) days
of receipt of grades.

Class and Seminar Scheduling — 3.60

Employees are required to receive Department Manager or Executive Director
approval to schedule class or seminar attendance. If class or seminar interferes
with department workload, the employee’s Department Manager or Supervisor may
not approve time off for attendance.

Page | 16



Employee Personnel Files — 4.00

Policy —4.10

The Port of Kingston will maintain personnel files for employees and comply with
the provisions of all laws which affect employees’ rights to privacy.

Purpose — 4.20

To provide Port Management with necessary information for effective personnel
administration and to protect employees’ rights according to State and Federal
guidelines.

Responsibility — 4.30

The Controller is charged with the responsibility for the maintenance of all
personnel files.

Personnel Files — 4.40

Employee personnel files contain applications and performance evaluations,
personnel action records, letters of commendation, educational assistance, and
other information. The Executive Director may use documentation in the personnel
files to support any personnel actions. Personnel files are the property of the Port,
and employees may not add or remove any documents from their personnel file.

Access to information in Personnel Files —4.50

Employees are authorized to review their own personnel files. With reasonable
advance written notice, employees may review their own personnel files in the
Port’s Administration office, and in the presence of the Controller or designee. All
other requests to review files will be in accordance with existing laws pertaining to
disclosure of such records.

Changes in Personal Data —4.60

Keeping your personnel records current can be important to you with regard to pay,
deductions, benefits and other matters. If you have changes in any of the following
items, it is your responsibility to notify the Port of the change as quickly as

possible:
= Name
= Marital status
= Address

= Telephone number
= Dependents

Page | 17



Person to be notified in case of emergency

Job related physical or other limitations which impact employment
Guard card status and/or expiration

Legal status

Tax withholding

Other information having a bearing on your employment.

Page | 18



Leaves of Absence with Pay — 5.00

Policy — 5.10

To provide employees leave of absence with pay as required by law or under Port
approved circumstances.

Purpose — 5.20

To establish criteria used in authorizing leave of absence with pay and to identify
parameters for the Port’s classifications of absence with pay.

Bereavement Leave — 5.30

In the event of a death in the employees’ immediate family, as defined in Section
1.00 Definitions, the Executive Director will grant the employee leave with pay not to
exceed twenty-four (24) working hours. Leave in excess of twenty-four (24) hours is
charged as vacation leave or leave without pay.

Court Appearances and Jury Duty — 5.40

It is the civic obligation of each employee to serve as a juror or witness if called.
Compensation received from the court for mileage, meals, etc., while serving as a
juror or witness is retained by the employee.

Employees must show and provide a copy of the jury duty summons to the Office
Manager and Department Manager/Supervisor as soon as possible so that the Port
may make arrangements to accommodate their absence. Employees are expected
to report for work whenever the court schedule permits.

Emergency — 5.50

Department Managers/Supervisors may grant reasonable leave with pay in an
emergency for good cause shown. Leave permitted under this subsection is
reserved solely for unforeseen circumstances not elsewhere provided for in these
policies and is limited to three days. Leave will be charged as vacation leave.
Requests for leave in excess of three days will be processed as regular vacation. In
cases where the employee’s vacation leave is exhausted, leave may be allowed
without pay at the discretion of the Executive Director. Leave under this section is
at the Port’s discretion.

Page | 19



Paid Military Leave — 5.60

Employees who are members of the Washington national guard or the army, navy,
air force, coast guard, or marine corps reserve of the United States or of any
organized reserve or armed forces of the United States may take a paid military
leave of absence from employment for a period not exceeding twenty-one (21) days
during each year beginning October 15tand ending the following September 30t in
order to report for required military duty, training or drills including those in the
national guard or state active status. The employee shall be charged military leave
only for days that he or she is scheduled to work for the Port.

This leave is in addition to sick or vacation leave accruals and shall not involve any
loss of efficiency rating, privileges or pay.

Paid Sick, Vacation and Holiday Benefits —5.70

The Port provides a variety of paid sick leave, vacation and holiday benefits as
described in other sections of this personnel manual.

Continuation of Benefits during Paid Leave — 5.80

Employees who are on a paid leave of absence shall continue to receive benefits
they were entitled to prior to the start of their leave, including the accrual of
vacation, sick leave, holidays, retirement and health insurance benefits. Unless
stated otherwise in these policies, an employee’s benefits (including health
insurance and leave accruals) will be suspended during any period of leave more
than thirty (30) consecutive days. In certain cases, self-payment of insurance
premiums may apply under COBRA.

Paid Family Medical Leave Act — 5.90

Employees in Washington who have worked at least 820 hours during the qualifying period
(which is about the last year) may be entitled to leave, a partial wage replacement, and
other benefits through Washington’s Paid Family and Medical Leave (PFML) program.
Paid Family and Medical Leave is funded by a small premium that is collected from your
paycheck. Eligible employees receive up to twelve (12) weeks of medical or family leave,
or a combined sixteen (16) weeks of medical and family leave. Eligible employees may
receive an additional two (2) weeks of medical leave related to pregnancy complications.
Leave under the PRML program runs concurrently with leave under the Family and
Medical Leave Act.

Medical leave may be used for the employee’s own serious health condition. Unless
complications arise, ordinary health conditions — such as common cold or flu, earaches,
upset stomach, minor ulcers, headaches (other than migraines), routine dental or
orthodontia problems, and periodontal disease — do not qualify as serious health
conditions.

Page | 20



Family leave may be used to care for a newborn or newly adopted child, or a family
member with a serious health condition. Family leave may also be taken to be with a
family member injured in military service or to deal with exigencies of military deployment.
Family members include a spouse (including registered domestic partner), child (including
step and foster, regardless of age), grandchild, sibling, parent (including in-law and loco
parentis), and grandparents.

The employee must file a claim with the Employment Security Department. If the

Employment Security Department approves the claim, it pays the benefits directly to the
employee.

Page | 21



Leaves of Absence without Pay — 6.00

Policy — 6.10

To provide employees with a description of various leaves of absence without pay
authorized under the law or under Port approved circumstances.

Purpose — 6.20

To establish criteria to use for authorized leaves of absence without pay
and to identify the classifications whereby the Port would allow for leaves of
absence without pay but for continuation of Port benefits to include health
insurance, position seniority, and job security.

Spouses of Military Persons Leave — 6.30

During a period of military conflict, an employee who is the spouse or state
registered domestic partner of a member of the armed forces of the United States,
national guard or reservices who has worked an average of twenty (20) or more
hours per workweek and who has been notified of an impending call or order to
active duty or has been deployed is entitled to a total of fifteen (15) days of unpaid
leave per deployment after: 1) the military spouse/state registered domestic partner
has been notified of an impending call or order to active duty and before
deployment or 2) when the military spouse is on leave from deployment.

To activate this leave, an employee must provide The Port with notice of his/her
intent to take this leave within five (5) business days of receiving official notice of an
impending call, order to active duty or leave from deployment.

An employee who takes a military spouse leave of absence may elect to substitute
any accrued leaves to which he/she is entitled for any part of the leave provided
under this section.

The Port shall maintain an employee’s health coverage under the Port’s group plans
while on military spouse leave at the level and under the conditions the coverage
would have been provided if the employee had continued in employment
continuously for the duration of such leave. If the employee is not eligible for any
employer contribution to health coverage benefits under the employer policy during
any period of leave, the Port shall allow the employee to continue, at the
employee’s expense, health insurance coverage including any spouse and
dependent coverage, in accordance with state or federal law. The premium to be
paid by the employee shall not exceed 102% of the applicable premium for the
leave period.

Taking leave under this section will not result in the loss of any employment benefits
accrued before the date on which the leave commenced.

Page | 22



Upon return to work, an employee who takes leave under this section will be
restored to the same job or one of like status, pay and benefits.

Military Leave — 6.40

Federal and state law provide liberal time-off and reinstatement rights to military
personnel. The Port will comply with all military leave entitlements provided under
these laws. Please contact Controller for more information on this leave.

Domestic Violence Leave — 6.50

The Port supports the public interest in reducing domestic violence, sexual assault
and stalking by enabling victims to maintain financial independence necessary to
leave abusive situations, achieve safety, and minimize physical and emotional
injuries. Eligible employees are those who are the victims of domestic violence,
sexual assault and stalking and employees whose family members are victims.
Eligible employees under this section may take reasonable periods of leave as
authorized by law and may, at their option, utilize paid sick leave or unpaid leave.

Authorized purposes for leave include those listed in Section 7.50 (5) of this
Manual. As a condition for taking this type of leave, an employee shall give the Port
as much advance notice as possible. If advance notice is not possible, an employee
or his/her designee shall give notice no later than the end of the first day the
employee takes such leave. The Port may ask for verification that the leave is for an
authorized purpose. The Port will maintain confidentiality of all information provided
by the employee under this section.

Taking this leave will not result in the loss of any pay or benefits to the employee
that accrued before the date on which the leave commenced. Upon return to work
an employee will be restored to same job or one of like status, pay and benefits. To
the extent allowed by law, the Port will maintain coverage under any health
insurance plan for an employee who takes leave under this section for the duration
of the leave and at the level and under the conditions coverage would have been
provided if the employee had not taken the leave.

Pregnancy Disability Leave — 6.60

A pregnant employee is entitled to an unpaid leave of absence for the time that she
is sick or temporarily disabled because of pregnancy or childbirth or complications
therefrom. The employee must provide written verification from her treating health
care provider certifying the actual period of disability. The employee may use
accrued sick and vacation leave or utilize unpaid leave Vacation and sick leave
does not accrue during unpaid disability leave.

Upon return to work, an employee on pregnancy disability leave will be returned to
her same job or one of like status, pay and benefits. Before returning to work, the

Page | 23



Port may require the employee to provide a certification from her health care
provider releasing her to work and setting forth any limitations that may apply.

Extended Authorized Absences without Pay — 6.70

In extraordinary situations which do not adversely impact the Port’s business, the
Executive Director has authority to approve absence without pay to extend the
leave period approved in other sections of this Personnel Manual. Such leave is
within the sole discretion of the Port and will be determined on a case-by-case
basis, taking into consideration such factors as the circumstances warrant, including
but not limited to the purpose for the leave, the employee’s seniority and position,
the Port’s needs, etc.

Leave without Pay Approval — 6.80

Periods of leave without pay must be approved, in advance when possible, by the
Department Manager for periods up to forty hours. Periods of unpaid leave in
excess of 40 hours must be approved, in advance, by the Executive Director,
except in the case of the Executive Director who must receive approval of the Port

Commission.

Suspension of Benefits during Unpaid Leave — 6.90

Except as required by law, an employee on unpaid leave shall not be entitled to
any employee benefits (including but not limited to health insurance and leave
accruals). However, if an employee desires to continue their health insurance
during a period of unpaid leave, they may be able to continue such coverage by
paying for the entire premium during such unpaid leave. Please contact the
Controller for more information.

Page | 24



Sick Leave — 7.00

Policy — 7.10

It is the policy of the Port of Kingston to provide paid sick leave benefits to all
eligible employees.

Purpose — 7.20

The purpose of policy 7.00 is to outline the guidelines for the accrual and use of sick
leave.

Accrual, Rate of Pay and Carryover — 7.30

Paid sick leave begins to accrue at the start of employment. The accrual year for
paid sick leave is the calendar year from January 1stthrough December 315,
Seasonal employees will accrue paid sick leave at a rate of one hour for every 40
hours worked. Regular full and part time employees will accrue paid sick leave at a
rate of two hours for every 40 hours worked. There is no cap on the number of paid
sick leave hours that may accrue in a year. Paid sick leave will be compensated at
an employee’s rate of pay, excluding overtime rates.

Paid sick leave hours will not count towards the calculation of overtime.

Seasonal employees may carry over up to 40 hours of accrued but unused
sick leave into the succeeding calendar year. All regular full and part time
employees may carry over up to a maximum of 1,000 hours of accrued but
unused sick leave into the succeeding calendar year. Sick leave may be
used only after it has been accrued.

Payroll — 7.40

Employees will be notified of their paid sick leave balances each month on their pay
stub or direct deposit statement, including:

Accrued paid sick leave since the last notification
Used paid sick leave since the last notification
Current balance of paid sick leave available for use
Donations via shared leave program

Use of Sick Leave — 7.50

Employees may use sick leave for the following purposes:

1. An employee’s mental or physical iliness, injury or health condition;
2. Preventive care such as a medical, dental or optical appointment/or
treatment;

Page | 25



3. Care for a family member with an iliness, injury, health condition and/or
preventive care such as a medical/dental/optical appointment. “Family
member” under this section means any of the following: (a) a child, including
a biological, adopted, foster or stepchild or a child to whom the employee
stands in loco parentis, is a legal guardian or de facto parent, regardless of
the age or dependency status; (b) a biological, adoptive, de facto, or foster
parent, stepparent or legal guardian of the employee or the employee’s
spouse or registered domestic partner, or a person who stood in loco
parentis when the employee was a minor child; (c) a spouse, (d) registered
domestic partner, (e) grandparent, (f) grandchild or (g) sibling;

4. Closure of the employee’s place of business or child’s school/place of care
by order of a public official for any health-related reasons;

5. If the employee or the employee’s family member is a victim of domestic
violence, sexual assault, or stalking. This includes:

a. Seeking legal or law enforcement assistance or remedies to ensure
the health and safety of employees and their family members,
including, but not limited to, preparing for, or participating in any civil
or criminal legal proceeding related to domestic violence, sexual
assault or stalking.

b. Seeking treatment by a health care provider for physical or mental
injuries caused by domestic violence, sexual assault or stalking.

c. Attending health care treatment for a family member who is a victim.

d. Obtaining, or assisting a family member in obtaining services from a
domestic violence shelter, a rape crisis center, or a social services
program for relief from domestic violence, sexual assault or stalking.

e. Helping a family member to get mental health counseling.

f. Participating in safety planning; temporary or permanent relocation; or
other actions to increase the safety from future events of domestic
violence, sexual assault or stalking for the employee or a family
member.

Unless directed by the employee to use other accrued paid time off as allowed by
the Washington Family Care Act absences eligible for use of sick leave will be
deducted from the employees accrued sick leave bank, except in the case of leave
requested under the Domestic Violence Act, employees have the option to request
the use of any other bank of accrued paid time off or may take the leave on an
unpaid basis.

Partial Day Absences — 7.60

Non-exempt and Exempt Employees — Sick leave can be used in minimum
increments of one hour.

Reasonable Notice and Verification — 7.70

To the extent possible, employees are to provide as much advance-notice as is
possible of the need for time off under this section, provided the notice does not

Page | 26



interfere with the employee’s use of paid sick leave. For absences extending three
days, the Port may require verification that an employee’s use of paid sick leave is
for an authorized purpose; provided the verification does not result in an
unreasonable burden or expense on the employee and does not exceed privacy or
verification requirements otherwise established by law.

Advance Sick Leave— 7.80

After all available paid sick leave has been exhausted, and in an exceptional
circumstance which does not adversely affect the needs of the Port, the Executive
Director has the authority to grant advanced paid sick leave not to exceed forty
(40) hours. Any such front-loaded sick leave is subject to Section 7 of this
Personnel Manual.

Shared Leave — 7.90

The Executive Director may authorize employees to donate their accrued sick leave
to another Port employee who requires leave for any purpose authorized under this
section and which has caused the employee to take leave without pay or is likely to
cause the employee to terminate his/her employment.

Employees may donate accrued sick leave for Shared Leave. To be eligible to
donate leave, the employee must have at least 80 hours of accrued sick leave
before donating. In no event shall a leave donation result in the donor employee
reducing his/ her sick leave balance to less than 40 hours. The maximum amount of
leave that may be donated to an eligible employee is 40 hours.

Employees may qualify for donated leave by working 12 months for at least 1,250
hours prior to their request for Shared Leave. Requests for Shared Leave should
be made in writing to the Controller and the request will be reviewed by the
Executive Director. If approved, the Controller will notify all eligible donors of the
request and provide a Shared Leave donation form to all those employees who
qualify to donate and wish to participate. Upon receipt of the donation forms, the
Controller will transfer the leave from the donor to the recipient as needed.

The names of both the donor and recipient will be kept confidential.

All donations of Shared Leave must be given voluntarily. Donations will be
calculated on a dollar for dollar basis. The minimum amount of donation is one
hour.

The employee receiving donated leave shall have exhausted all his/her
accumulated, vacation, holiday and sick leave.

While an employee is using Shared Leave, he or she will continue to receive the
same treatment, in respect to salary and benefits, as the employee would otherwise
receive if using vacation, holiday or sick leave.

Page | 27



Abuse of Sick Leave — 7.100

Abuse of sick leave privileges may result in discipline, up to and including
termination. An employee who is unable to report to work must notify their
Department Manager/Supervisor of the absence as soon as possible. Abuse of
these privileges may include but is not limited to failure to provide reasonable
notice, when possible, as required in these policies; failure to provide a timely
verification of the need for leave as described in Section 7.60 and providing any
false statement regarding the need for leave under this section.

Unused Sick Leave —7.110

Employees are not paid for unused sick leave at time of termination, resignation,
retirement or other separation from employment; however, in the case of an
employee being rehired within twelve months of separation, previously accrued
unused paid sick leave shall be reinstated.

Retaliation Prohibited - 7.120

Any discrimination or retaliation against an employee for lawful exercise of paid sick
leave rights is not allowed. Employees will not be disciplined for the lawful use of
paid sick leave. If an employee feels they are being discriminated or retaliated
against, the employee may contact the Controller at (360) 297-2545. If an employee
is not satisfied with the Port’s response, the employee may contact the Washington
State Department of Labor & Industries at 1-866-219-7321, toll free.

Employees with questions about paid sick leave may contact the Controller.

Page | 28



Port of Kingston
Application for Shared Leave

Name of Employee: Job Title:

Name of Supervisor:

Instructions:

1. Describe the situation which has prompted your request.

2. State the amount of time needed and reasons for your request.

3. Attach information verifying the need for leave for one of the purposes contained in Section
7.50. Please see the Controller for a description of what documents will be necessary.

4. Sign the following waiver:

I authorize the Controller to furnish the information on/or attached to this form and my Sick
Leave, Vacation Leave, and Holiday Leave balances, to the Executive Director for use in
reviewing my request.

Employee Signature Date

Page | 29



Port of Kingston
Application for Shared Leave
Manager / Supervisor Supplemental Information

Name of the Employee Requesting Shared Leave:

Name of Supervisor:

Please answer the following questions, based on your knowledge of the situation:

1. Why is this employee requesting Shared Leave?

2. Has this employee ever abused the Port’s leave policies in the past? If yes, please describe the
problem and any action taken.

3. What other relevant facts should the Executive Director know before making a decision?

4. Do you feel this employee should be granted Shared Leave? T Yes T No
Why or why not?

Thank you for your response. Please forward this form along with the completed
application for Shared Leave to the Controller

Page | 30



Port of Kingston
Shared Leave Donation Form

Name of Employee:

Type of leave and hours you would like to donate:

Vacation leave — number of hours

f

| authorize the Port of Kingston to deduct the above leave hours from my leave bank to be
donated for the Shared Leave program.

Employee Signature Date

Page | 31



Vacation Leave —9.00

Policy — 9.10

It is the Policy of the Port to provide vacation leave to all regular employees so that
each employee will have periods of time to separate themselves from their work
environment. Vacation leave is also available to allow employees to take care of
personal business that cannot otherwise be taken care of during normal time off.

Purpose — 9.20

Outline guidelines for the accrual and use of vacation leave.

Accrual Rates — 9.30

Employees will earn vacation leave in accordance with the following schedule. All
hours are accrued for every one hundred and sixty (160) hours of compensated
employment. Vacation leave may be used only after it has been accrued.
Temporary Part time employees none

Regular Part time employees 8 hours

Regular employees

Less than 9 months of service 8 hours
Over 9 months less than 3 years 9 hours
Over 3 years less than 6 years 10 hours
Over 6 years less than 9 years 11 hours
Over 9 years less than 12 years 12 hours
Over 12 years 13 hours

Sick Leave — 9.40

Sick leave may not be converted to vacation leave. An employee may use vacation or holiday leave for sick leave
purposes when sick leave has been exhausted. provided, however, when vacation or holiday leave is used for
sick leave purposes, the Port may require verification that an employee’s use of paid sick leave is for an
authorized purposes.

Requests for Vacation Leave — 9.50

To take vacation leave, employees must request leave, in writing, from their
Department Manager. Requests for leave must be approved in advance by the
Page | 32



Employing Official or designee.

If circumstances warrant, Employing Officials may waive advance notice. Requests
will be reviewed based on a number of factors, including business needs and
staffing requirements. The Department Manager has the discretion to deny vacation
leave in order to ensure that department functions. Approval should be provided in
writing or on the Port SharePoint site.

If the Department Manager cannot accommodate requested vacation leave period
within two weeks of requested time, the Department Manager is authorized to
request hiring of temporary employees to cover requested leave period. Only the
Executive Director can approve any hiring of temporary employees for coverage of
vacation leave of regular employees.

Vacation Leave Carryover — 9.60

Employees may carry forward no more than one hundred and twenty (120) hours of
unused vacation leave into the next year. All hours over one hundred and twenty
(120) will be forfeited by the employee as of the 15t of January.

Partial Day Absences —9.70

Non-Exempt Employees — Vacation leave can be used in minimum increments
of one-quarter hour.

Exempt Employees — Vacation leave can be used in minimum increments of four (4)
hours. If leave hours are unavailable, the employee’s pay will be reduced, or the
employee will be placed on leave without pay.

Vacation Leave Allowances — 9.80

Minimum Vacation Leave— 9.81

All regular full-time employees are encouraged to take at least two (2) weeks
of vacation leave per year.

Maximum Vacation Leave — 9.82

Employees requesting more than two (2) contiguous weeks of vacation leave
must have written approval from the Executive Director.

Cash Out of Vacation Hours — 9.90

All employees will be paid for unused vacation leave at the time of separation or
retirement as provided herein, except “for cause” terminations where the employee
is separated due to violations of Port policy, laws or regulations.

The Port may terminate an employment at any time “for cause.” Cause shall
Page | 33



include, without limitation: (i) an act of dishonesty related to his employment; (ii)
commission of any willful or negligent act that results in financial or reputational
harm to the Port; (iii) failure to follow any lawful directive of the Port or failure to
perform his duties under this Agreement (provided that employee has been given
notice and an opportunity to cure an alleged failure to perform any duties that are
not emergency-related); (iv) commission of a felony or crime of moral turpitude; or
(v) willful violation of the Port’s policy or other willful misconduct. The foregoing
evaluation of "cause" is solely for the purpose of determining an employee's right to
vacation cash out upon departure and does not limit the Port’s right to end or alter
the employment relationship with or without cause under the employment-at-will
doctrine.

Payment is limited to accrual restrictions contained within these policies.
Employees who are not applying for separation or retirement are eligible to apply
for cash reimbursement for a portion of their accrued vacation leave.

Employees requesting cash out of vacation leave should forward their request to
their Department Manager. The Department Manager will review the request and
verify that the employee is eligible to apply for cash out based on the criteria listed
herein as well as meeting minimum work performance standards as determined by
the Port in its discretion. Once verified by the Department Manager, the request will
then be forwarded to the Executive Director for approval.

Regular Full Time Employees — 9.91

Regular full-time employees are authorized to apply for cash reimbursement
of up to forty (40) hours per year. Prior to application for reimbursement,
employees must have taken a minimum of eighty (80) hours of leave since
January 1stand must have a balance of at least forty (40) hours after
converting vacation into cash payment.

Reqular Part Time Employees — 9.92

Regular part time employees are authorized to apply for cash reimbursement
of up to forty (40) hours per year. Prior to application for reimbursement,
employees must have taken a minimum of forty (40) hours of leave since
January 18tand must have a balance of at least twenty (20) hours after
converting vacation into cash payment.

Page | 34



Special Pay — 10.00

Purpose — 10.10

To define different situations in which employees shall receive additional
compensation.

Standby Pay — 10.20

While the Port of Kingston has a reasonable expectation that Managers and
Supervisors will be available outside of their normal work hours for incidental issues
and consultation not requiring on site response or extensive involvement beyond
telephone conversation, there may be instances in which employees will be placed
on standby status by Department Manager/Supervisor if they determine it is
necessary to meet the demands of the department. This will be necessary to cover
anticipated emergency situations, periods of possible high-volume workloads, or
periods of possible regular staff departures.

Standby periods are “off duty” time periods where an employee is completely
relieved from duty such that the employee can use the time effectively for the
employee’s own purposes. Employees are entitled to spend such time at their sole
discretion subject to the following:

e Employees on standby will be required to be available by telephone and to
report to the work site within thirty (30) minutes of telephone call from the
Department Manager and/or Supervisor unless a longer period is specifically
approved by the Department Manager/Supervisor.

e Employees shall be in a condition to report to work (e.g. no consumption of
alcohol).

Standby Pay Compensation Non-Exempt Employees — 10.21

During periods when a non-exempt employee is required to be on
standby status, the employee will be compensated 25% of their hourly
rate for each hour of standby, with a minimum of four hours and a
maximum of 12 hours in any one day.

Standby Pay Compensation Exempt Employees — 10.22

Exempt employees will not receive compensation for being on standby
status.

Page | 35



Call Out Pay — 10.30

Employees who are requested to report to work outside of their normal work
schedule will receive call out pay in accordance with the following conditions.

Call Out Pay Minimum — 10.31

Call out pay will be for a minimum of two (2) hours and employees will be
paid at their regular rate.

Call Out Pay over Reqular 40 hour work week — 10.32

If the employee has otherwise worked forty (40) hours, call out pay will be for
time and one half.

Call Out Pay under Reqular 40 hour work week — 10.33

If the employee has not yet worked their full weekly regular hours, call out
pay will be at regular time unless specifically approved as time and one half
by the Department Manager/Supervisor.

Call Out Pay for Exempt Employees — 10.34

Exempt employees will not receive compensation for call outs. Special
circumstances may be appropriate for overtime pay which must be approved
by the Executive Director.

Call Out Pay for Non-Exempt Employees— 10.35

Call out pay will initiate when the employee reports to the Port, properly
dressed, and ready to work. The on call pay period will end when the
employee is released by the Manager/Supervisor.

Temporary Promotion Pay — 10.40

Each employee is expected to perform the duties of other positions in accordance
with the requirements of their particular position description. If an employee’s
duties, workload and responsibilities are temporarily expanded, the Department
Manager/Supervisor can request that the employee be assigned a higher pay level.
The Port will temporarily pay the reassigned employee at the lowest level for the
higher grade or the current grade level, whichever is higher. The temporary
assignment to the higher position, its duration, and the increased pay must be
approved by the Executive Director.

Page | 36



Shift Differential — 10.50

Additional pay for shift differential will be received by employees who work the
hours between 9pm and 6am. If an employee is required to work “off shift” hours
and is not normally required to work “off shift” hours, the employee will receive
differential pay of seventy five cents ($.75) additional per hour for each hour
worked.

Shift Differential Pay Approval — 10.51

Shift differential pay must be approved by the Executive Director or
Controller or Harbormaster prior to the employee working the “off shift”
hours.

Page | 37



Legal Holidays — 11.00
Policy — 11.10

It is the policy of the Port to observe state and federal holidays in accordance with
appropriate state and federal laws and regulations. Port policy also allows for
employee compensation and opportunities to observe holidays while continuing to
provide appropriate Port services to the public.

Purpose — 11.20

To define holidays and establish accrual rates for eligible employees.

Holidays Observed — 11.30

The Port Administration offices and the Maintenance department will
be closed for the following legal holidays:

New Year’s Day
Martin Luther King Day
President’s Day
Memorial Day
Juneteenth
Independence Day
Labor Day

Veteran’s Day
Thanksgiving Day

Day after Thanksgiving
Christmas Day

The Executive and Marina Operations Offices will be closed for the following
holidays:

New Year’s Day
Thanksgiving Day
Christmas Day

Paid Holidays — 11.40

All regular full and part-time employees will be paid for the holiday based on their
current work schedule. Employees who have a 5 — 8 hour work schedule will be
eligible for 8 hours for the holiday.Employees who have a 4 — 10 hour work
schedule will be eligible for 10 hours for the holiday. Part time employees will be
eligible for payment proportionately based on their regular work schedule. For
employees who work shifts that start on one day and end on another, the Holiday is
paid based on the day your shift starts.

Page | 38



Authorization to Work the Holiday — 11.50

While Marina Operations personnel may be required to work certain holidays to
cover normal business hours. non-essential personnel having a workload that would
require them to work on a Holiday must request authorization to work, in writing,
from the Executive Director.

Regular employees who are required to work on the holiday will be paid one and a
half times their regular rate of pay for hours worked in addition to being paid for the
holiday as noted in section 11.40. Holiday pay will not count towards the calculation
of overtime.

Floating Paid Holiday — 11.60

In addition to the above Holidays, all Regular employees are entitled to one
Personal Floating Holiday per calendar year accrued on January 15t of
each year.

Floating Holiday Guidelines — 11.61

The holiday may be taken at any time during the calendar year, upon
consultation with the employee’s supervisor or other designated manager.
The Port will apply the following guidelines to employee requests to use the
paid floating holiday:

1. An employee seeking to use such leave must direct the request to his or
her supervisor or manager at least five (5) business days in advance of
the start of the anticipated leave.

2. The employee must state that the requested leave is for the purpose of
using the floating paid holiday.

3. Supervisors and/or managers will grant timely leave requests under this
category, unless the supervisor or manager determines, in the reasonable
exercise of discretion and after considering all relevant available
information, that the employee’s absence on the day(s) requested would
impose an undue hardship as defined by law and/or other administrative
rule on the employer, or the employee’s presence is necessary to
maintain public safety. Whether an employee’s presence is “necessary to
maintain public safety” shall be determined by the supervisor or manager
upon consideration of whether the employee would be required on the
day in question to perform any essential function reasonably impacting
public safety, and whether the employee can be reasonably replaced in
the shift within the period of notice given.

Page | 39



4. If the supervisor or manager, after considering all relevant circumstances,
determines that the undue hardship or public safety exception applies, the
supervisor or manager shall promptly notify the employee in writing of the
reasons and explanation for denying the leave request.

5. If unused during the calendar year, the floating holiday expires, and does
not accrue from year to year.

Paid Holiday in Conjunction with Vacation and Sick Leave — 11.70

Paid Holiday will not run concurrent with vacation leave and/or sick leave; however,
Paid Holiday may be used in conjunction with vacation or sick leave to extend the
leave period.

Unpaid Holidays for Reasons of Faith, Conscience, or Religion — 11.80

All Port employees are entitled to take two unpaid holidays per calendar year
for a reason of faith or conscience, or for an organized activity conducted under
the auspices of a religious denomination, church, or religious organization.
Should an employee wish to take these two unpaid holidays on specific days,
the request will be allowed unless the employee’s absence would impose an
undue hardship on the Port or the employee is necessary to maintain public
safety. Employees may use accrued paid vacation or the paid personal holiday
should they wish to be paid for this holiday time.

Guidelines for Submission/Approval of Leave Requests — 11.81

The Port will apply the following guidelines to employee requests to
use these holidays:

1. All employees are eligible to use these unpaid holidays.

2. An employee seeking to use such leave must direct the request to
his or her supervisor or manager at least five (5) business days in
advance of the start of the anticipated leave, when practicable.

3. The employee must state that the requested leave falls within the
category of leave for a reason of faith, conscience, or religion, but the
employee shall not be required to describe the specific purpose of
the leave requested or the specific category of faith, conscience, or
religious belief to which the employee ascribes.

4. The employee’s supervisor or manager will grant timely leave
requests under this category, unless the supervisor or manager
determines, in the reasonable exercise of discretion and after
considering all relevant available information, that the employee’s

Page | 40



absence on the day(s) requested would impose an undue hardship
on the Port, as defined by law and/or other administrative rule, or the
employee’s presence is necessary to maintain public safety. Whether
an employee’s presence is “necessary to maintain public safety” shall
be determined by the supervisor or manager upon consideration of whether
the employee would be required on the day in question to perform any
essential function reasonably impacting public safety, and whether the
employee can be reasonably replaced in the shift within the period of notice
given.

If the supervisor or manager, after considering all relevant
circumstances, determines that the undue hardship or public safety
exception applies, the supervisor or manager shall promptly notify
the employee in writing of the reasons and explanation for denying
the leave request.

If unused within the calendar year, the leave expires, and does not
accrue from year to year.

Page | 41



Overtime — 12.00

Policy — 12.10

The Port recognizes that non-exempt employees who work hours in excess of forty
(40) in the Port’s standardized work week will be granted overtime at a rate of one
and a half (1.5) hours for each hour actually worked. Calculation of an employee’s
entitlement to overtime does not include hours taken by such employee as paid
time off.

Generally, salaried exempt employees are expected to work the hours necessary to
accomplish their regular job assignments. For extraordinary tasks, salaried exempt
employees may be compensated for additional hours worked, if approved (in
advance) by the Executive Director.

The Port reserves the right to require overtime when the need arises. Refusal to
perform overtime work without a reasonable excuse may be cause for disciplinary
action.

Overtime Approval — 12.20

Managers are responsible for approval of all overtime. Prior approval of a Manager
is required before a non-exempt employee works overtime; however, if the Manager
is not available, approval may be delegated to Supervisors. It is expected that the
Manager authorizing such overtime work initial the time card for the amount of
overtime authorized. Employees working overtime without approval may be subject
to disciplinary action.

Page | 42


http://www.drs.wa.gov/

Wages, Salaries and Pay Disbursal — 13.00
Policy — 13.10

It is the policy of the Port to compensate its employees based on current job duties
and other criteria which are evaluated annually. During budget deliberations each
year, the Port Commission will consider adjustments to the pay range based on
inflation or other market/economic criteria.

Time Cards — 13.20

In compliance with Federal and State laws, the Port will require every employee
to accurately record all time worked so that the employee pay and benefits can be
accurately calculated.

For the purposes of Port record keeping, time worked is defined as all the time
actually spent on the job performing assigned duties.

All employees must accurately record their time spent on the job performing work.
Employees should record their work day by allocating their time to the cost centers
in which the work was performed. Time can be allocated in increments of 15
minutes or .25 of the hour.

It is the employee’s responsibility to sign their time card to certify the accuracy of all
time recorded. The supervisor or manager will review and then initial the time
record before submitting it for payroll processing. In addition, if corrections or
modifications are made to the time record by the supervisor, manager or payroll
department, the employee will be notified of such change. If the employee disputes
the change, he/she may address the changes with the Executive Director.

Failure to accurately report time may result in disciplinary action up to and including
termination.

Pay Periods and Paydays— 13.30

Port of Kingston employees are paid twice monthly via direct deposit. All
employees will be paid in accordance with the Port of Kingston published payroll
schedule.

While the Port takes all reasonable steps to ensure that all employees receive the
correct amount of pay in each paycheck, that no improper deductions from wages
and salaries are made, and that employees are paid promptly on each scheduled
payday, errors may occur.

In the unlikely event that there is an error in the amount of pay, the employee
Page | 43



should promptly bring the discrepancy to the attention of the Controller or
Harbormaster, so that corrections can be made with the next regularly scheduled
pay day following the reported error. If the employee remains unsatisfied with the
deduction or explanation of the discrepancy, the employee may contact the
Executive Director for a final determination.

Pay Disbursal — 13.40

The Port of Kingston will make payments to the following organizations on behalfof
its employees. Payments will be based on payroll deductions in accordance with
the established pay periods.

Deferred Compensation Plan — 13.41

The Washington State Department of Retirement Systems offers a deferred
compensation plan which allows employees to defer a portion of their income
before taxes and accumulate earnings on a tax deferred basis until separation from
service. There is a minimum monthly deferral amount of $30.00. Maximum deferral
is determined by state regulation. Contact the Controller or visit www.drs.wa.gov to
obtain information about the deferred compensation program.

Garnishments — 13.42

The Port of Kingston is required by law to abide by any “Writ of
Garnishment” filed against any employee of the Port. These amounts will be
deducted and submitted as determined by law.

Supplemental Insurance — 13.43

The Port of Kingston offers several Supplemental Insurance programs to
regular employees of the Port. The Port will deduct and submit any monthly
premiums to the carriers as authorized by the employee.

Page | 44



Employee Benefits — 14.00
Policy — 14.10

It is the policy of the Port to provide eligible employees with a competitive
benefit package as part of the Port’s total compensation program. The Port
reserves the right to alter this benefit package at any time. The Personnel
Manual contains only a summary of benefits, the actual content of

the referenced benefit programs will govern the scope of the benefits provided.
Thus, the following summaries are subject to change depending on the benefit
programs and policies in force at a particular time.

Retirement Plan — 14.20

The Port of Kingston is affiliated with the State of Washington Department of
Retirement System. Benefits of this system are available to all eligible employees
of the Port. Both the employee and the Port make contributions into this retirement
plan. Contribution rates are determined by the specific plans.

Worker's Compensation Insurance — 14.30

All Port employees are covered by the Department of Labor and Industries for on
the job injury. Employees who sustain work-related injuries or illnesses are required
to inform their supervisor immediately. No matter how minor an on-the-job injury
may appear, it is important that it be reported immediately and that procedures
established in the Emergency Safety and Operations Manual (ESOP) be followed.
Labor and Industries assigns class codes based on the employee’s job description
and annually updates the rate used to figure the premium owed.

Deferred Compensation — 14.40

Deferred compensation is administered through Washington State Retirement
Systems. Contribution into this program is optional. Employees are allowed to defer
a portion of their income before taxes and accumulate earnings on a tax deferred
basis. There is a minimum monthly deferral amount of $30 per month. Maximum
deferral is determined by the Plan. Contact the Controller to receive Plan
information.

Supplemental Insurance — 14.50

The Port works with several companies to offer supplement insurance plans to
employees. The employee pays the premiums for these plans. Contact the
Controller to find out which plans are offered.

Specific Policies and Programs — 14.60

Page | 45



This Handbook describes the current benefit plans maintained by the Port. Refer to
the actual plan documents and summary plan descriptions if you have specific
questions regarding the benefit plan. Those documents are controlling.

The Port reserves the right to modify its benefit programs at any time. We will keep
you informed of any changes.

Page | 46



Employee Complaint and Grievance Policy — 15.00
Policy — 15.10

It is the Policy of the Port of Kingston to provide employees with internal review
processes in order to provide the employee a better understanding of work
performance and solutions to work related concerns, problems, complaints, or
grievances.

Informal Process — 15.20

The Port encourages employees to resolve work related concerns informally with
their Supervisor and/or Department Manager.

Formal Process — 15.30

The Port will provide employees with fair and consistent processes for timely review
and resolution of their work related concerns, problems, complaints or grievances.

Page | 47



Employee Performance — 16.00
Policy — 16.10

It is the Policy of the Port of Kingston to provide guidelines for employee
evaluations, discipline and termination.

Purpose — 16.20

The Purpose of the policy is to foster effective employer/employee relationships
through responsible management practices by providing employees with fair and
reasonable expectations regarding performance related issues. The purpose of this
policy is not to create a contract, promise or expectation for employees of specific
treatment in specific circumstances. This policy is also not intended to alter the
nature of at-will employment relationship which provides an employee can be
terminated with or without cause at any time for any reason.

Employee Discipline — 16.30

The Port attempts at all times to operate its business in the most efficient,
economical and orderly manner possible, consistent with established rules and
regulations. Disciplinary action may be necessary for a variety of reasons, including
but not limited to the Port’s interest in maintaining safe, efficient and professional
operations.

All employees are subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination.
Disciplinary action up to and including termination may be warranted under the
following circumstances including, but not limited to:

e Use, possession, or sale of unlawful drugs or alcohol while on
company premises or while on duty or reporting to work under the
influence of alcohol or any unlawful drugs.

e Violation of a lawful duty

e Being involved in more than 2 damage claims or accidents in any

twelve-month period

Insubordination

Breach of policies

Conviction of a misdemeanor or felony.

Excessive absenteeism or tardiness, including a pattern of

absenteeism or tardiness.

Misconduct

e Misuse of religious, political, or fraternal influence

e Accepting fees, gifts, or other valuable items not consistent with Port
policies or directives

e Abuse of sick leave as described in Section 7.00 of this policy manual

e Theft, stealing, or unauthorized removal of property belonging to the Port, or

Page | 48



another employee or patron.

Dishonesty

Performing work other than Port work on Port time

Actions that misrepresent Port policies or procedures

Harassing or intimidating another person in violation of any Portpolicy

or any applicable law

e Failure to satisfactorily perform the employee’s assigned duties and/or
responsibilities

e Job abandonment.

e Sleeping or malingering on the job.

e Unprofessional conduct, such as gambling or use of vulgar language,
while on the Port’s time or property.

e Unauthorized use of company equipment, time, materials or facilities.

e Failure to observe safety regulations.

Abuse, defacement or destruction of property belonging to the Port or

customers.

Threatening, intimidating or coercing other employees.

Fighting or provoking a fight on company time or property.

Disrespect or discourtesy to supervisors or guests.

Falsifying, altering, destroying or willfully omitting information from any

time card or company record (including employment applications).

The above list is not an exhaustive list of prohibitive conduct. Further, nothing in
this policy changes the employment-at-will status of all employees, which permits
you or the Port to terminate your employment for any reason at any time, with or
without cause and with or without advance notice, and which also permits the Port
to impose discipline including termination, demotion, transfer, suspension, or
other discipline in its sole discretion as it determines appropriate.

The degree of discipline depends on the severity of the infraction as determined in
the sole discretion of the Executive Director after the facts and circumstances are
evaluated.

Forms of Discipline — 16.40

Although employment with the Port is based on mutual consent and both the
employee and the Port have the right to terminate employment at will, with or
without cause, the Port may, depending on the circumstances, utilize a variety of
disciplinary actions in any specific situation. Examples of disciplinary actions that
the Port may choose to utilize in any specific situation are as follows:

Verbal Reprimand — 16.41

Verbal reprimands would typically be used only for first time infractions of a
minor degree.

Page | 49



The employee will be informed when a Department Manager/Supervisor is
administering a verbal reprimand as disciplinary action in order to give the
employee an opportunity to correct the condition. A notation that a verbal
reprimand is given will be made for the employee’s personnel file.

Written Reprimand — 16.42

A written reprimand is a signed, written statement issued by the
Department Manager/Supervisor which is placed in the employee’s file.
The Executive Director will be notified of this action. A meeting is
typically held by the Department Manager/Supervisor to advise the
employee of the written reprimand and to discuss corrective action and
disciplinary measures. The employee is provided a copy of the written
reprimand and is expected to acknowledge receipt.

Suspension — 16.43

A suspension is unpaid time off from work.

The Executive Director is authorized to administer suspension without pay
for up to thirty (30) days.

Disciplinary suspension will be issued in writing including the reason and
duration of suspension and placed in the employee’s file. The employee is
provided a copy of the suspension and is expected to acknowledge receipt.

Demotion (in position or wage/salary) — 16.44

The Executive Director is authorized to demote an employee in position
and/or wage/salary.

A disciplinary demotion will be issued in writing including the reason for the
demotion and will be placed in the employee’s file. The employee is provided
a copy of the demotion and is expected to acknowledge receipt.

Discharge — 16.45

The Executive Director has the authority and discretion to discharge an
employee.

Discharge will be issued in writing including the reason for the discharge

and will be placed in the employee’s file. The employee is provided a
copy of the discharge and is expected to acknowledge receipt.

Page | 50



Work Performance Evaluations — 17.00

Purpose — 17.10

To provide effective and productive evaluations of employee performance by their
immediate supervisor. Oral evaluations are a part of regular supervisory duties while
written evaluations will be conducted in a formal manner that provides for an in-depth
review by the supervisor and a clear opportunity for employee feedback. The use of
regular and constructive oral evaluations, together with formal written evaluations will be
used to encourage continued excellent performance and to help correct less than
satisfactory performance.

Evaluations — 17.20

Each regular employee may receive a written annual evaluation at year end to reflect
performance from January through December. The standard Port evaluation form will be
used which reflects factors that are common to all Port employees, factors common to
employees within each department, and factors specifically derived from the employee’s
position description and areas of responsibilities.

The supervisor will utilize the form, together with oral discussions, to evaluate the
employee and allow for employee feedback during the evaluation period. The evaluation
form allows for additional written comments by the supervisor and for acknowledgment by
the employee. Written comments should include any appropriate comments as
determined by the supervisor and should specifically list performance that has exceeded
a satisfactory level and/or actions the employee must take to improve performance for
the next rating period. Recommended actions may include specific training classes
and/or on-the-job training required to improve performance and/or help the employee in
their current position or for future advancement.

Use of Evaluations — 17.30

The employee evaluation forms will be made a part of the employee record and will be
used by the Port in determining the type and frequency of training; both formal and on-
the-job training. The forms will also be used to assist the Port in evaluating employees
being considered for internal promotions within the Port of Kingston organization.
Evaluation forms may be used to determine employee pay adjustments. Information in
the employee evaluations is available to the employee for use in references at the
employee’s request. Evaluation information may be considered in determining
appropriate disciplinary action for violations as discussed in Section 16.00 Employee
Performance.

Page | 51



Special Evaluations — 17.40

Special evaluations may be submitted by the responsible supervisor on employees who
have made particular progress on areas of special concern or when performance has
significantly changed, either better or worse. The employee should be notified, in writing,

that a special evaluation is being prepared. The employee will receive a copy of the
special evaluation and will be provided an opportunity to comment.

Page | 52



Anti-Discrimination and Harassment — 18.00

Policy — 18.10

The Port of Kingston is strongly committed to providing its employees a work
environment free from any form of discrimination or harassment on the basis of
race, color, religion, sex, gender, national origin, age, sexual orientation, gender
expression, gender identity, disability or any other protected status. In addition to
this goal, all individuals making application for employment or conducting business
with the Port must be allowed to do so in an environment free from such
discrimination or harassment.

It is the firm and express policy of the Port of Kingston that any form of
discrimination or harassment on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, gender,
national origin, age, sexual orientation, gender expression, gender identity,
disability, or any other protected status by or against Port employees shall not be
tolerated under any circumstances. Port Managers and Supervisors are
admonished to do all within their power to ensure that such discrimination or
harassment is prevented, insofar as is possible, and where it does occur, that it is
remedied with appropriate disciplinary action taken against any Port employee who
engages in such discrimination or harassment. The Port encourages the prompt
reporting of instances of such discrimination or harassment and will ensure that
reporting employees’ rights are protected.

Definitions — 18.20

Harassment — 18.21

Verbal or physical conduct that denigrates or shows hostility or aversion
toward an individual because of his/her race, color, religion, sex, gender,
national origin, age, sexual orientation, gender expression, gender identity or
disability, or of his/her relatives, friends, or associates, and that:

1. has the purpose or effect of creating an intimidating, hostile, or
offensive work environment;

2. has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an
individual’'s work performance; or

3. otherwise adversely affects an individual’s employment
opportunities. (Equal Employment Opportunity Commission
Guidelines)

Harassment includes, but is not limited to: remarks, gestures, or physical

contact, display or circulation of written materials or pictures derogatory to
another employee because of the criteria referenced above.

Page | 53



Sexual Harassment — 18.22

“‘Unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal
or physical conduct of a sexual nature constitute sexual harassment when (1)
submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or
condition of an individual’s employment, (2) submission to or rejection of
such conduct by an individual is used as the basis for employment decisions
affecting such individual, or (3) such conduct has the purpose or effect of
unreasonably interfering with an individual’s work performance or creating an
intimidating, hostile, or offensive working environment” (Equal Opportunity
Commission Guidelines).

Sexual Orientation, Gender Expression or Gender ldentity Harassment — 18.23

Prohibited conduct may include but is not limited to:

1. Asking unwelcome personal questions about an individual's sexual
orientation, gender expression or gender identity, transgender
status or sex assigned at birth;

2. Intentionally causing distress to an individual by disclosing the
individual's sexual orientation, gender expression or gender
identity, transgender status or sex assigned at birth against his/her
wishes;

3. Using offensive names, slurs, jokes or terminology regarding an
individual's sexual orientation, gender expression or gender
identity;

4. Deliberately misusing an individual’s preferred name, form of
address or gender-related pronoun;

5. Posting offensive pictures or sending offensive electronic or other
communications;

6. Unwelcome physical contact.

Discrimination — 18.24

Discrimination includes but is not limited to the provision of different
employment opportunities, benefits, or privileges; the creation of different
working conditions; the use of different evaluative standards in employment,
or different methods or standards of service to Port customers or clients, if
the reason for the different treatment is, in whole or in part, based on the
person’s protected status.

Discrimination also includes failing to provide a reasonable accommodation

for a known disability, when requested, provided the accommodation does
not result in an undue hardship for the Port.

Page | 54



Procedures — 18.30

Harassment on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, gender, national origin, age,
sexual orientation, gender expression, gender identity, disability, or any other
protected status may be an unlawful activity which is prohibited as a form of
discrimination under Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Washington
State Law Against Discrimination. Any employee who engages in such activity shall
be subject to disciplinary action.

Employees who are the victims, or are otherwise aware, of discrimination or
harassment by or against an employee should immediately contact his/her
manager, supervisor, Executive Director or Controller. If the complaint involves
someone in the employee’s direct line of supervision, the employee should first
contact the Executive Director or Controller. The report may be made personally
or in writing and should be made as soon as possible after the incident while the
facts and supporting witness statements are readily available.

Any employee who is subjected to any form of discrimination or harassment, and
who feels comfortable doing so, is encouraged to directly and immediately
inform the offending person that the conduct is offensive and must stop.

In addition, any manager or supervisor who receives a report of potential
harassment or is otherwise aware of possible harassment must report the
situation immediately to the Executive Director or Controller. This includes
management personnel at all levels, including those persons serving temporarily
as managers or supervisors. “Immediately” means that the manager or
supervisor will act swiftly to report the situation, generally within one (1)
business day of becoming aware of the situation. If a complaint or report is
made, the employee making the complaint or report will provide the Port with all
relevant information to assist the Port in properly resolving this matter.

The Port will investigate all complaints or reports of discrimination or harassment
promptly and in a discreet manner. Discretion will be used during the investigation
in order to maintain as much confidentiality as possible while still being able to
effectively complete the investigation. Documentation generated in the
investigation, with the exception of disciplinary memos, of any discrimination or
harassment complaint will be maintained in files separate from any employee’s
personnel file.

It is each employee’s duty to cooperate fully in any discrimination or harassment
investigation and to provide full and honest disclosure to anyone acting on behalf of
the Port in investigating allegations of discrimination or harassment.

The Port will not retaliate against nor condone retaliation against any person for

reporting discrimination or harassment or for cooperating in a discrimination or
harassment investigation.

Page | 55



Alcohol & Drug Free Workplace Policy — 19.00

Policy — 19.10

The Port of Kingston is committed to achieving an alcohol and drug-free workplace.
The obijective of this policy is to provide Port employees with a safe, drug-free
workplace, to promote high standards of employee health, and to carry out the
Port’s basic responsibility to serve the public safely and without undue interruption.
Alcohol and other drug abuse are a significant public health problem and have a
detrimental effect on the business community in terms of increased medical claims,
medical disability costs, decreased productivity, injuries, theft and absenteeism.
Accordingly, the Port has the right and obligation to maintain a safe, healthy and
productive working environment and to protect the Port's property, operations and
reputation.

Applicability — 19.20

This policy applies to all employees of the Port and all employees who report to
work must be in a condition fit to perform their duties, unimpaired due to the use of
alcohol or other drugs or intoxicants.

Violations — 19.30

The use, purchase, sale, transfer, delivery, possession or being under any influence
of alcohol, illegal drugs or intoxicants on Port property, at Port worksites (including
Port vehicles) or while engaged in Port business is a violation of this drug free
workplace policy and may result in discipline up to and including termination. Law
enforcement officials will be notified whenever illegal substances are found.

Notification of Conviction — 19.40

In accordance with the Drug Free Workplace Act of 1988, any employee who is
convicted of a criminal drug violation in the workplace must notify the Port in writing
within five (5) calendar days of the conviction. The Port will take appropriate
responsive action within thirty (30) days of notification and with the appropriate
federal agency.

Prescription or Over-the-Counter Medication — 19.50

The legal use of prescription or over-the-counter medications is not prohibited.
However, employees should not report to work or should request an
accommodation if they are taking prescription or over-the-counter medications that
might affect their ability to perform their duties in a safe and effective manner. If the
prescription or over-the-counter medications could impair an employee’s safety or
work performance, the employee needs to make such use known to an appropriate
Port representative. While using medication, it may be necessary to temporarily
reassign an employee to non-hazardous work or allow the employee to take leave.

Page | 56



Management may request that the employee obtain a medical authorization letter
from the prescribing physician verifying the employee’s need for the medication and

verify that the employee will be able to safely perform his/her normally assigned
duties while taking it.

Assistance — 19.60

The Port values its employees and recognizes the need for a balanced approach to
achieving an alcohol and drug-free workplace. The Port will assist any employee
who voluntarily admits to a problem with substance abuse and requests such help.
The Port will provide information regarding health insurance and leave benefits
available to that employee for purposes of treatment. If an employee voluntarily
seeks a drug/alcohol evaluation by a qualified professional and is required to enter
a rehabilitation or treatment program, a return-to-work agreement may be
considered. However, nothing in this policy prohibits the employee from being
disciplined or discharged for policy violations and/or performance problems.

Confidentiality — 19.70

The Port will maintain confidentiality of all records and information concerning
alcohol and drug dependencies in the same manner as it maintains other medical
information. Access to this information is limited to those with a legitimate need to
know in compliance with relevant laws and management policies.

Reasonable Suspicion — 19.80

No supervisor shall undertake action under this policy regarding the suspected use
of drugs or alcohol unless there is a reasonable suspicion that the employee is
under the influence of drugs or alcohol during working hours sufficient to adversely
affect the employee’s performance of job duties. “Reasonable suspicion” means an
articulated belief based on specific facts and reasonable inference drawn from
those facts that an employee is under the influence of drugs or alcohol.
Circumstances which may constitute a basis for determining a reasonable suspicion
include, but are not limited to:

> A pattern of abnormal or erratic behavior (e.g., a significant change in the
quantity or quality of work, unusual mistakes or errors of judgment, unusual
absenteeism);

A work-related accident, in combination with other factors;

The direct observation of the employee’s use of drugs or alcohol;

The employee’s possession of drugs or alcohol on Port premises;

The noticeable presence of physical symptoms of drug or alcohol use (e.g.,
glassy, blurry or bloodshot eyes, hand tremors, flushed or swollen face, the
odor of alcohol or drugs on the breath, slurred speech, poor coordination);
Written or oral report from a supervisor, co-employee or non-employee
based on personal knowledge that an employee may have violated the Drug
Free workplace policy.

VVVY

A\

Page | 57



In the event that management has a reasonable, articulated suspicion that an employee is
impaired by the use of alcohol or drugs, that employee will be relieved

of duties and the incident will be immediately investigated. In such instances where
reasonable suspicion has been established through prompt investigation, the Port
reserves the right to conduct drug testing through a qualified independent testing

facility. The employee’s refusal to submit to such testing following reasonable

suspicion will be deemed to be a violation of this policy.

Page | 58



Whistleblower Policy — 20.00

Policy — 20.10

The Port of Kingston policy is to encourage reporting by its employees of improper
governmental action taken by Port of Kingston officers or employees and to protect
Port of Kingston employees who have reported improper governmental actions in
accordance with Port policies and procedures.

Definitions — 20.20

Improper Governmental Action- Any action by a Port of Kingston officer or
employee that occurs in the performance of official duties, whether or not the action
is within the scope of responsibilities, and is:

1. In violation of any federal, state, or local law or rule;

2. Is substantial and specific danger to the public health or safety;

3. Is a gross waste of public funds.
Improper governmental action does not include personnel actions, including but not
limited to: employee grievance, complaints, appointments, promotions, transfers,
assignments, reassignments, reinstatements, restorations, reemployments,
performance evaluations, reductions in pay, dismissals, suspensions, demotions,
violations of collective bargaining or civil service laws, alleged violation of labor
agreements or reprimands.

Retaliatory Action — Any adverse change in the terms and conditions of any
employee’s employment.

Emergency — A circumstance, that if not immediately addressed, will cause
damage to persons or property.

Reporting — 20.30

Employees who become aware of improper governmental actions should raise the
issue with their Department Manager as provided herein. The Department
Manager must request the employee to submit a written report stating in detail the
basis for the employee’s belief that an improper governmental action had
occurred.

Department Managers are responsible for taking prompt action to properly
investigate a report of improper governmental action. The reporting of an
employee’s name will be kept confidential to the extent possible under the law
unless the employee authorizes the disclosure of their identity in writing. Once an
investigation is completed, the employee will be advised of a summary of the results

Page | 59



of the investigation. Personnel action taken as a result of the investigation will be
kept confidential to the extent permitted by law.

The Department Manager is required to inform the Executive Director of actions
being reviewed. The Department Manager will recommend, if appropriate, any
personnel action to the Executive Director.

Retaliation — 20.40

Port of Kingston officials and employees are prohibited from taking retaliatory action
against an employee who has reported an improper governmental action in
accordance with these policies and procedures. Employees who believe they have
been retaliated against for reporting an improper governmental action should advise
the Executive Director who will take appropriate action to investigate and address
complaints of retaliation.

If the Executive Director does not satisfactorily resolve an employee’s complaint
that retaliation has occurred, the employee shall obtain protection by providing a
written notice to the Port Commission that:

1. specifies the alleged retaliatory action;
2. specifies the relief requested.

The employee shall provide a copy of their written charge to the Port Commission,
with a copy to the Executive Director no later than thirty (30) days after the
occurrence of the retaliatory action. The Port Commission shall respond within
thirty (30) days to the charge of retaliatory action.

After receiving the response from the Port Commission or if there is no action from
the Port Commission within thirty (30) days after the delivery of the charge, the
employee may request a hearing before a state administrative law judge to
establish that a retaliatory action occurred and to obtain appropriate relief provided
by law. An employee seeking a hearing should deliver the request for the hearing
to the Executive Director within the earlier of either fifteen (15) days of delivery of
the Port of Kingston response to the charge of retaliatory action, or forty-five (45)
days of the delivery of the charge of retaliation to the Port Commission for
response.

Upon receipt of request for hearing, the Executive Director will apply within five (5)
working days to the State Office of Administrative Hearings for an adjudicative
proceeding before an administrative law judge.

Office of Administrative Hearings
PO Box 42488,
919 Lakeridge Way SW, 2" floor
Olympia, WA 98504-2488
(360) 664-8717
Page | 60



Employees having questions about the procedures for reporting improper
governmental action are encouraged to contact the Executive Director.

Violations — 20.50

Violations of this policy and these procedures (i.e., retaliation) will result
in appropriate disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal.

Page | 61



Travel Time — 21.00

Policy — 21.10

It is the policy of the Port to allow for travel time for employees engaged in Port
related business outside their normal duties and responsibilities.

Special Tasks —21.20

Employees who are directed to participate in special tasks will also be expected to
charge their additional travel time to their regular work hours. If necessary, the
Department Manager/Supervisor will request payment of overtime pay in
conjunction with the special task. The overtime pay request will be submitted to the

Executive Director for approval.

Voluntary Tasks — 21.30

Travel time in connection with voluntary tasks will generally not be compensated.

Page | 62



Preventing Workplace Violence — 22.00

Policy — 22.10

The Port of Kingston believes that all employees should be treated with dignity and
respect. We strive to assure a safe environment for our employees and the public.
Acts of violence, threats of violence and/or physical intimidation between employees or
with customers will not be tolerated. This includes, but is not limited to, intimidating,
threatening or hostile behaviors, physical abuse, vandalism, arson, sabotage, use of
weapons, or any other act, which, in management’s opinion, is inappropriate to the
workplace.

Reporting — 22.20

Employees who feel they have been subjected to any of the behaviors listed above, or who
observe or have knowledge of any violation of this policy should immediately report the
incident to their supervisor, manager, Executive Director or other Human Resources
representative. Complaints will be responded to promptly and investigated.

If an employee reasonably believes an imminent threat to the safety of themselves
or others exists, the employee should call “911” and contact the proper law
enforcement authorities without first coordinating with management.

Violation of Policy — 22.30

Violation of this policy will result in disciplinary action, up to and including immediate
termination.

Page | 63



Appearance and Dress Code — 23.00

Policy — 23.10

The Port of Kingston considers it very important that employees are well

groomed, neat and appropriately dressed for their job function and, while we trust each
employee’s common sense and good judgment, a dress code must be followed that is
appropriate for the work environment. Appropriate dress and hygiene are important in
promoting a positive image to our customers. Whether or not an employee’s appearance
is appropriate for the work environment of the Port of Kingston shall be determined by the
Executive Director or his designee.

General Clothing — 23.20

Dress standards vary by department. However, it is expected that all employees will wear
clothing that is neat, clean, and free of holes and or tears. Employees shall not wear
buttons, labels, tags or hats/caps bearing the names of third parties or containing
messages, the sole exception being labels of the clothing manufacturer for that particular
piece of apparel. Employees who appear for work inappropriately dressed may be sent
home and will not be compensated for time away from work. Repeated violation of this
policy may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination.

Administrative Staff — 23.21

We have adopted a Business Casual Dress as our dress standard Monday
through Thursday. Denim blue jeans may only be worn on Friday or if job
duties require the employee to work in conditions where it is appropriate.
All shirts and tops must cover both chest and midsection (stomach).
Undergarments must not be exposed in any way. A reasonable standard of
dress rules out sweatpants, shorts, exercise clothing, tank tops, halter-tops
or any extreme in dress.

Operations and Maintenance Staff — 23.22

Employees performing in these positions will be issued shirts, sweatshirts, a
hat and a jacket. Each employee will wear their own trousers. Shorts are
allowed in warm weather conditions if they are walking style shorts (knee
length). Cut off shorts, short shorts and pants or shorts that hang lower than
the hips are not considered professional attire and are prohibited.

Employees must wear shoes that cover the entire foot, toes to heel, and
are appropriate for outdoor work.

Page | 64



Tattoos — 23.30

Tattoos must not be offensive or distracting. The Port of Kingston asks that the
employee make every effort to conceal their tattoos with clothing whenever possible
to maintain professionalism. Exceptions may be made for markings with religious or
cultural significance.

Accommodation — 23.40

Religious Accommodation — 23.41

A religious accommodation can be made for sincerely held religious beliefs or practices to
make an exception to the Appearance and Dress Code, unless it would pose an undue
hardship regarding safety, security or health concerns.

Medical Accommodation — 23.42

To request a medical exemption, the employee shall provide the supervisor with the
following: 1) A doctor’s note from the employee’s personal physician stating the employee
needs medical exemption from shaving; and 2) A completed Authorization for Release of
Medical Information. The employee’s supervisor shall forward the doctor’s note and the
completed Authorization for Release of Medical Information to the employee’s Department
Manager.

Page | 65



Employee Recognition — 24.00
Policy — 24.10

The Port of Kingston may expend funds for the purpose of employee recognition,
subject to budgetary authority.

Purpose — 24.20

To establish guidelines under which the Port of Kingston funds can be used for the
purpose of employee recognition in accordance with RCW 41.60.150 and IRS
Publication 15-B.

Employee Recognition — 24.30

1. Employee and team accomplishments should be regularly recognized.
2. Employee tenure should be recognized.
3. Retiree contributions to the Port should be acknowledged.

Continuous Service Awards — 24.40

The Port will recognize years of service for all salaried and wage employees
through the Continuous Service Awards program.

1. Service awards will be given after five (5) years of service, and thereafter at five
(5) year intervals.

2. Awards shall be in the form of a check, after payroll taxes are deducted.

3. Awards shall be based on cumulative years of service as follows:
a. 5years-$100
b. 10 year - $125
c. 15 years - $150
d. 20 years and every 5 years thereafter- $200

4. Service awards shall be presented regularly at Port sponsored awards
ceremonies or employee appreciation events. All staff shall be invited.

Employee Recognition Events — 24.50

The Port’s Executive Director may schedule awards ceremonies or employee
appreciation events.

1. The cost of awards ceremonies or employee appreciation events shall be
reasonably proportionate to the employee contribution being recognized.
Page | 66



However, the average cost for food, beverages, decorations, and related
costs shall not exceed $35 per Port staff attendee. No Port funds shall be

spent on alcoholic beverages.

2. Total program costs shall not exceed $6,000 per year.

Page | 67



Computers and Information Technology Resources — 25.00

Policy — 25.10

This policy applies to all information technology resources owned or leased
by Port of Kingston, used on or accessed from Port of Kingston premises,
and/or used for Port of Kingston business. This policy also applies to all
information technology activities using any technical services such as:
computers, internet, e-mail, intranet, phone system, and other information
technology equipment and resources.

Information Technology Resources (ITR) are defined as any and all desktop
and portable computing devices, software, fax machines, network data
resources, internet access, copy machines, telephones, cell phones, smart
phones, pagers and voice mail, electronic mail, information and data in the
ITR system.

Employee Use of ITR for Business Purposes — 25.20

Port of Kingston encourages employees to make maximum use of ITR for
accomplishing the business of Port of Kingston.

ITR are provided to employees for use in the performance of their work. The
equipment and data remain at all times the property of the Port of Kingston.
ITR information is not private. ITR information is subject to search by Port of
Kingston, public disclosure, state audit and record retention requirements.

Employee Use of ITR for Minimal Personal or Non-Business Purposes — 25.30

Prohibited uses of Port of Kingston ITR include:

e Use of an employee’s private or commercial business, benefit, or
gain.

e Playing games on Port of Kingston’s computers and other technical
resources.

e Employee promoting or soliciting for any non-Port of Kingston
business or activities, including:

o Commercial activities.
o Religious causes.

o Political causes and campaigns, including federal or state
legislative proposals or ballot measures.

Page | 68



o Support for outside organizations or charities, unless permitted by
law and authorized specifically by the Executive Director, such as
United Way.

o Other personal causes or activities not related to Port of Kingston
business.

o Using ITR for any offensive content as defined in the Personnel
Manual.

Employee will confer with the IT Manager in order to delete and/or prevent
unwanted solicitations.

Employees may make minimal (occasional but limited) personal use of ITR if
all of the following conditions are met:

The use is brief and does not disrupt or distract from Port of Kingston
business due to volume, frequency, or timing.

The use is on the employee’s own time (breaks, lunch, before and
after work), not work time.

The use does not interfere with the performance of the employee’s
official duties.

There is no marginal cost to the Port of Kingston.

The use does not compromise the security or integrity of Port of
Kingston information or software.

There are no commercial, solicitation, or illegal activities.

If the permissibility of use is unclear, the employee must request supervisory
approval before using the ITR.

E-Mail — 25.40

E-mail is for Business Use. Port of Kingston’s electronic mail system is

primarily for official business. Non-business messages may be sent to
specific individuals, but employees are asked to limit business time spent on
messages that do not have a business purpose.

E-mail is Not Private. Port of Kingston expects employees to honor the

password protection system and not to read other people’s e-mail. Everyone
should understand, though, that e-mail is not private or confidential. Any
message sent can be forwarded on to anyone else on the system. Even after
the e-mail has been deleted, it can still be possible to retrieve it and read it.
Also, all messages are Port of Kingston records and are the property of Port
of Kingston. For these reasons, the e-mail system should not be used for any

Page | 69



information considered personal or private.

E-mail Decorum and Content. When employees use the e-mail system, they
should keep in mind they are using Port of Kingston property. All e-mail and
electronic documents are not private and are subject to public disclosure
and/or audit. As a result, comments must be appropriate to the business
setting. Please take special care to use a civil and respectful professional
tone in electronic communications and avoid jokes or comments that would
be inconsistent with our policies prohibiting discrimination and harassment
(for instance, jokes aimed at a particular gender, race, religion, disability, or
sexual orientation).

Right to Audit Employee Use — 25.50

Port of Kingston reserves the right to audit ITR use or information at any time
in order to ensure compliance with policies, to investigation questionable
activities that could be harmful to the organization, to assist departments in
evaluating performance, productivity, or cost issues and concerns and to
identify ITR system issues.

Port of Kingston will audit in a manner to safeguard confidential, privileged,
or private employee or citizen information contained in the system as defined
by laws regulating public disclosure. Passwords do not imply complete
privacy.

Executive Director or Controller Implements Security Measures for ITR Use — 25.60

The Executive Director or Controller develops and implements policies and
procedures for maintaining the security of ITR.

In implementing and monitoring use of ITR, the Executive Department’s
authorized personnel may override any applicable passwords or codes to
inspect, investigate, or search an employee’s files and messages.

The Executive Department requires employees to disclose their password to
any specifically authorized Executive Department employee upon request.

Authorization Required for Specialized Use — 25.70

Port of Kingston requires approval from the Department Head or his/her
designee and/or the Executive Director or Controller for use of other than
assigned hardware, software and data files.

Page | 70



Non-Port of Kingston employees use ITR only if engaged by the Port of
Kingston to perform Port of Kingston business, whether volunteer or paid;
and authorized by the Executive Director or his/her delegate and/or the
Controller to use ITR for this purpose.

Employees are not allowed to remove any Port of Kingston computer or
computer equipment, including laptops, from Port of Kingston premises
without express permission from the Executive Director. This includes taking
a Port of Kingston computer home to perform Port of Kingston-related work.
If an employee is provided permission by the Executive Director to take a
Port of Kingston computer home or off Port of Kingston premises to perform
Port of Kingston work, non-exempt employees will be required to document
the amount of time spent working on the computer away from Port of
Kingston, including the amount of time spent performing Port of Kingston-
related business and any personal use of the computer.

Employees/Users Protect Confidential Information — 25.80

Employees must use ITR to protect confidential Port of Kingston business
information transmitted or stored in the system. Employees are advised to
use passwords to protect files, access new voice mail or e-mail in private,
close confidential screens before leaving work stations and use the following
heading to identify work-related, confidential Port of Kingston documents:
“Confidential and/or privileged.”

Security Procedures — 25.90

In using ITR, employees follow the security procedures below:

e Never provide a password to anyone outside Port of Kingston unless
approved in writing by the Executive Director or Controller.

e Never access any ITR using another employee’s password, except
that a department head may authorize or direct disclosure and use of
an employee’s password by another employee in situations deemed a
business necessity.

e Never encrypt voice mail, e-mail, or any files or data stored or
exchanged on Port of Kingston systems either by password or some
other form of encryption unless with express approval of department
head or his/her delegate. Confidential and/or privileged documents
are an exception.

Misuse of ITR —25.100

Port of Kingston prohibits misuse of ITR, including but not limited to:

Page | 71



e Use which interferes with employee productivity of self or others.

e Use which interferes with the operation of Port of Kingston’s
information technology resources.

e Masking user’s identity or misrepresenting information and/or
communicating as someone other than user.

e Unauthorized use of another employee’s password.

e The access of libraries, emails, files, data, programs, and directories
that are not related directly to work duties or which the employee is
not authorized to access.

e Unauthorized review, duplication, encryption, interception,
dissemination, removal, installation, damage or alteration of files,
passwords, computer systems or programs, or other property of Port
of Kingston.

e Improper and/or careless use of information obtained from ITR.

e Use of personal software on Port of Kingston’s ITR without
authorization.

e Copying Port of Kingston software for personal use.

e Connecting personal electronic devices to Port of Kingston’s wireless
network including, but not limited to, laptops, smart phones, PDAs,
Blackberrys, etc.

e Degrading or “diluting” bandwidth by streaming nonauthorized audio,
video or web services that serve to cause slowdowns on Port of
Kingston’s wireless network.

IT Manager Approves All Software — 25.110

The Executive Director or Controller or his/her delegate approves all
software used on Port of Kingston ITR. Employees must request prior
approval from the Executive Director or Controller or his/her delegate to
install any software on any ITR.

The Executive Director or Controller or his/her delegate will review the
proposed software to ensure it:

e |s compatible with business use.
e Can be adequately supported.

e Can be managed on the Port of Kingston systems.

Page | 72



¢ Does not introduce computer viruses.

e Meets its obligations under any applicable software licenses and
copyright laws.

The Executive Director or Controller or his/her delegate may immediately
remove software installed on Port of Kingston computers that does not
conform to this policy.

Compliance with Software Licensing Requirements — 25.120

The Executive Director or Controller or his/her designee only installs and
uses software on the Port of Kingston’s computer systems:

¢ When registered through the procedure above, and,

e As licensed or authorized by the software’s publisher.

Internet for Business Use — 25.130

The Executive Director, or his/her designee, assigns all IT uses to
employees. Resources provided will be appropriate and necessary for the
employee’s assigned duties.

The Executive Director authorizes internet access to:

e Employees who need this informational tool for carrying out their
work.

e Encourage employees to make full use of the internet for this purpose.

e Websites that are approved by the Department Head and/or his
designee.

Employees must use Internet in accordance with policy. Unacceptable uses
include:

¢ Intentional distribution of unsolicited advertising.
¢ Intentional propagation of computer worms and viruses.

¢ Using the network to make unauthorized entry to any other machine
accessible via the network.

Page | 73



e Using Port of Kingston Internet access to retrieve private and/or
confidential information or resources unless express permission has
been granted by the owners or holders of rights to those resources or
information.

Washington’s Public Record Act — 25.140

For the purpose of Washington’s Public Record Act, a public record includes

any electronic record containing information relating to the conduct of the

Port government or the performance of any City governmental or proprietary

function prepared, owned, used, or retained by the Port, including any Port

employee, regardless of physical form or characteristics.

Electronic records could be located on a public employee’s personal ITR if the record is
within the public employee’s scope of employment. Employees are, therefore, generally
prohibited from using personal ITR for the Port’s business. In the case of a public record
request for records that may be located on personal ITR, the Port may require its
employees to search for (and, if appliable, product) public records on their personal ITR
and submit reasonably detailed, nonconclusory affidavits that attest to the nature and
extent of their search,

Executive Director’s Authority — 26.00

Policy — 26.10

The Executive Director has the authority to make exceptions to the policies or
procedures provided for within this manual.

Page | 74



Organizational Chart

Commissioners
District 1

PORT OF KINGSTON District 2

District 3

General Counsel

Executive Director

Administrative Services

Harbormaster Controller
Manager

Marina Attendant Marina Attendant Maintenance Manager Port Assistant Office Lead

. . . . TOTAL
Marina Attendant Marina Attendant (P/T) Marina Attendant (P/T) Marina Attendant (P/T) alle

FULL TIME: 10
PART TIME: 3

Updated October 2020 ]




PORT OF KINGSTON

Telecommuting Policy

1.0 SUBJECT TITLE: Telecommuting Policy

2.0 PURPOSE: To establish a policy and procedures to encourage, where appropriate, the use of
telecommuting (also known as Telework) in order to attract and retain a diverse and talented
work force, reduce costs, encourage affordable traffic mitigation, improve productivity among
employees, better address work and family demands, and further goals of local, state, and
national policies and regulations such as the Stay Home-Stay Healthy Order, the Clean Air Act
and the Commute Trip Reduction law. The Port of Kingston supports telecommuting as an
alternative work arrangement and allows supervisors to implement telecommuting
arrangements, where appropriate, for eligible employees.

3.0 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED: Applicable to all Executive employees.
4.0 REFERENCES: None.
5.0 DEFINITIONS:

5.1 "Telecommuting" means working one or more days each work week from home
instead of commuting to their centrally located worksite.

5.2 "Voluntary" means employees choose to request a telecommuting
arrangement.

6.0 POLICIES:
6.1 Program Agreement and Goals

6.1.1 The telecommuting policy shall supersede all prior and/or existing
telecommuting or telework policies.

6.1.2 The telecommuting policy shall apply to all employees in the Executive
Branch.

6.1.3 The Executive Director is allowed to implement telecommuting
arrangements, where appropriate, for eligible employees in recognition of the
positive personal and management impacts of such arrangements, including
reduced commuter stress and traffic congestion, and increased workplace
flexibility. Telecommuting can both serve the needs of the Port of Kingston and its
clients and grant a greater degree of personal freedom to employees.



6.1.4 Telecommuting is not appropriate for all employees. No employee is entitled
to, or guaranteed the opportunity to, telecommute. Offering the opportunity to
work at home is a management option, based on the discretion of the employee’s
immediate supervisor and Executive Director. An employee’s participation is strictly
voluntary. All telecommuting agreements must meet the criteria in this policy and
may be terminated at any time by either the employee or the immediate
supervisor (although it is recommended that two weeks’ notice be given if
possible).

6.1.5 The policy applies to voluntary telecommuting. The policy does not apply in
situations related to telecommuting offered as a result of providing reasonable
accommodation for qualified individuals with a disability.

6.1.6 The Port of Kingston will incur the cost for any expenses they approve for
telecommuting agreements.

6.1.7 Expenses for telecommuting agreements require the approval of the
Executive Director. The Executive Director may allow division, section or unit
managers the authority to approve minimal telecommuting expenses and should
set spending limits accordingly.

6.1.8 Implementation and termination of telecommuting agreements within
individual agencies will be at the discretion of the employee’s immediate
supervisor and Executive Director.

6.1.9 If a telecommuting agreement is terminated or refused, requests for
reconsideration may be submitted to the Executive Director.

6.1.10 An employee wishing to request a telecommuting arrangement shall submit
a written request to their immediate supervisor. A telecommuting arrangement
must be mutually agreed upon by the employee, the employee’s immediate
supervisor and Executive Director. Any changes to the written arrangement must
also be documented in writing and approved by the employee’s immediate
supervisor and Executive Director.

6.1.11 Immediate supervisors should consult with their information and technology
representatives in advance if an employee requires remote access or technology
support in order to telecommute.

6.1.12 Immediate supervisors and Executive Director must set-up telecommuting
agreements so that they expire on a routine basis, such as every three or six
months (up to a maximum of 12 months). At the expiration of a telecommuting
agreement, the employee would have the option to request renewal of the
arrangement by filling out another telecommuting application. This process allows
immediate supervisors and employees to evaluate and adjust telecommuting
arrangements to meet their workload needs.



6.1.13 After an employee begins a telecommuting arrangement, supervisors should
conduct periodic reviews with the employee to evaluate the success of the
arrangement. It is recommended that a first-time telecommuter would be
reviewed during the first 45 days, at the end of three months, at the end of six
months and after one year.

6.1.14 Should a conflict arise between two or more employees concerning a
telecommuting arrangement, the employee’s immediate supervisor shall have final
authority to resolve the matter.

6.1.15 Employees may, at the discretion of their immediate supervisor, be called to
work on their regular telecommuting workday during their regular work hours to
meet workload requirements.

6.1.16 If an employee is telecommuting and during the workday they come in to
work, the time traveling from the employee's home to the centrally located
worksite must be treated as "job site" to "job site" travel, and the employee's
travel time must be counted as hours worked and compensated accordingly.
Whenever possible, when telecommuting employees are requested to report to
work, they should be so notified by the end of the work day prior to the day they
are requested to report to work. In such cases, travel time between home and the
work is treated as regular commuting time and is not counted as hours worked and
compensated.

6.1.17 The duties, obligations and responsibilities of an employee who
telecommutes are the same as employees at the regular worksite.

6.1.18 A set procedure and schedule for regular communication between a
telecommuting employee, staff and customers must be identified in the
telecommuting agreement. Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA)-exempt employees
must indicate the hours they will be available to be reached by staff and customers.
For non-exempt employees, the telecommuting agreement must indicate the hours
the employee will be on work status as well as be available to be reached by staff
and customers. Supervisors may also outline specific job assighnments and
expectations of the telecommuting employee. Work schedule variations are subject
to supervisor approval.

6.1.19 For non-exempt employees covered by the provisions of the Fair Labor
Standards Act, any hours beyond their normal work schedule must be authorized in
advance by the employee’s supervisor.

6.1.20 In order to utilize sick leave on a telecommuting workday, employees must
contact their immediate supervisor as early as possible.

6.1.21 Employees who telecommute are expected to be working at their home
during their telecommuting work schedule. Personal leave time normally scheduled
during a telecommuting employee’s scheduled workday must be arranged in the



same manner with their immediate supervisor as employees at the regular
worksite.

6.1.22 Employees on a telecommuting schedule will continue to accrue vacation
and sick leave benefits at the same rate as an employee who is not working a
telecommuting arrangement. For non-exempt employees who are covered by the
provisions of the Fair Labor Standards Act, vacation and sick leave benefits shall be
expended on an hour-for-hour basis. The telecommuting employee’s salary,
retirement and benefits also remain unchanged.

6.1.23 Telecommuting shall not be used as a substitute for dependent or childcare
unless the need for telework qualifies under the Families First Coronavirus
Response Act (FFCRA) sections 3102 and 5102(a).6

6.1.24 Employees who telecommute will be covered by worker’s compensation for
all job-related injuries occurring at their home during their defined work period.
The employee is responsible for maintaining a safe and ergonomic working
environment, including the work area, bathroom, and other areas that may be
necessary for working during the telecommuting arrangement. Worker’s
compensation will not apply to non-job-related injuries that occur in the home. The
employee also remains responsible for injuries to third parties and/or members of
the employee’s family on the employee’s premises. The Port of Kingston will not be
responsible for injuries to third parties or members of the employee’s family that
occur on the employee’s premises.

6.1.25 In the event of a job-related incident, accident or injury during
telecommuting hours, the employee shall report the incident to their supervisor as
soon as possible and follow established procedures to report and investigate
workplace incidents, accidents or injuries.

6.1.26 The employee must allow home office inspections conducted by the Port or
representatives of the Port if a job-related incident, accident or injury has occurred.

6.1.27 Telecommuting employees shall not hold business meetings with internal or
external clients, customers or colleagues at their residence.

6.1.28 Employees shall not conduct any unauthorized external (non-port) work
during their telecommuting work schedule.

6.1.29 The employee shall participate in any port-sponsored telecommuting and/or
technology training as requested by the employee’s supervisor.

6.1.30 The employee shall participate in any port evaluation of telecommuting.
6.2 Telecommuting Eligibility:

6.2.1 An employee’s work must be of a nature that face-to-face interaction with
internal or external customers or project workgroups is minimal and the
employee’s tasks can be performed successfully away from the office.



6.2.2 The need for specialized material or equipment in order to telecommute
should be minimal. Employees interested in telecommuting must already have a
safe and ergonomic home office environment and the primary materials and
equipment needed at their home in order to telecommute.

6.2.3 Characteristics of the employee will include a demonstrated
conscientiousness about work time and productivity, self-motivation and ability to
work well alone.

6.2.4 The employee communicates effectively with supervisors, co-workers,
support staff and clients.

6.2.5 The employee operates computer or other equipment independently, to the
degree that will be required to work from their home.

6.2.6 The employee must be performing currently at an overall satisfactory level or
above in their position.

6.3 Hardware, Software and Supplies

6.3.1 Although the need for specialized material or equipment in order to
telecommute should be minimal, the port may provide equipment (hardware and
software) and services (such as technical support) if it is approved in advance by
the employee’s immediate supervisor and Executive Director. The Executive
Director may allow supervisors the authority to approve minimal telecommuting
expenses and should set spending limits accordingly.

6.3.2 General office supplies (such as paper and pens) will be provided by the port.
Out-of-pocket expenses for supplies normally available regular worksite will not be
reimbursed.

6.3.3 Employees who telecommute from home are subject to the same internal
port policies regarding the use of port provided equipment (hardware and
software) and services as that of employees at the regular worksite.

6.3.4 Employees who telecommute shall not allow anyone, except port employees,
to use port provided equipment (including hardware and software) and services.

6.3.5 HARDWARE: New or existing personal computer equipment may be provided
on an as-needed basis to employees by the port if approved in advance by the
employee’s immediate supervisor and division manager. Telecommuting expenses
beyond the minimum spending limit set up by Executive Director will also require
advance approval by the Executive Director. This equipment may consist of a
personal computer, modem and related supplies. All supplies must be returned to
the port as soon as the telecommuting arrangement is no longer valid or if the
equipment will no longer be needed by the employee to do their work. The port
will provide routine maintenance and repairs for port equipment if the equipment
is returned to the employee’s regular worksite. Routine maintenance and repairs
for port provided equipment that cannot be returned in a cost effective manner to



the centrally located worksite may be conducted at an employee’s home if it is
approved in advance by the employee’s immediate supervisor and is agreeable
with the applicable technology support staff person.

6.3.7 Office furniture will not be provided to employees who telecommute.

6.3.8 SOFTWARE: Employees must conform to the port’s software standards and
will consult with their IT support staff to ensure that the software needed conforms
to the port’s software policies.

6.3.9 Remote access to the port’s network may be provided to the employee at the
discretion of the employee’s immediate supervisor. Remote access may also be
updated periodically to the employee at the discretion of the employee’s
immediate supervisor. If the port’s remote access system includes internet access
or other dial-in services, the employee may only use the port provided internet
access or other dial-in services in a manner consistent with that of employees at
the centrally located worksite. Employees who telecommute from home are
subject to the same internal port policies regarding the use of port provided
equipment and services as that of employees at the centrally located worksite.

6.3.10 The port will not purchase or reimburse employees for the cost of an
internet service provider or internet use. If the port’s remote access system
includes internet access or other dial-in services, the employee may only use the
port provided internet access or other dial-in services in a manner consistent with
that of employees at the regular worksite. Employees who telecommute from
home are subject to the same internal port policies regarding the use of port
provided equipment and services as that of employees at the centrally located
worksite.

6.3.11 The port will not provide or reimburse employees for software that is
commercially available for installment on an employee’s personal computer.

6.3.12 The port may purchase or reimburse employees for software that is installed
on port provided equipment if approved in advance by the employee’s immediate
supervisor and Executive Director. Telecommuting expenses beyond the minimum
spending limit set up by Executive Director will also require advance approval by
the Executive Director.

6.3.13 Port information stored on an employee’s personal computer may be
subject to public disclosure requirements.

6.4 Telephones:

6.4.2 Port employees will use port issued cellular phones for making local and long-
distance calls. If the employee does not have a port issued cellular phone, the port
may reimburse an employee on a case-by-case basis for business related long-
distance telephone expenses incurred at the employee’s home on telecommuting
days if approved in advance by the employee’s immediate supervisor and Executive



Director . Telecommuting expenses beyond the minimum spending limit set up by
Executive Director will also require advance approval by the Executive Director.
Long distance charges for remote access to the port’s network is permissible if
approved in advance by the employee’s immediate supervisor and Executive
Director. Telecommuting expenses beyond the minimum standard set up by
Executive Director will also require advance approval by the Executive Director.
Reimbursement will require an itemized copy of the employee’s telephone bill.

6.4.3 The port will not reimburse the employee for local telephone calls or service.
6.5 Confidential Information:

6.5.1 The employee will maintain the confidentiality of port information and
documents, prevent unauthorized access to any port system or information, and
dispose of work-related documents in a manner that will not jeopardize the
interests of the port.

7.0 PROCEDURES:

Action By Action
7.1 Makes a written request and submits it to immediate
Employee .
supervisor.
Immediate Supervisor 7.2 Reviews request.
7.2.1 May request a written analysis of work tasks from
employee.

7.2.2 May deny agreement, or any equipment or service
expenses requested.

7.2.3 If agreement is acceptable, forwards agreement for
approval to Executive Director.

Executive Director 7.3 Reviews request.
7.3.1 May deny agreement, or any equipment or service
expenses requested. If denies, provides reason for denial to
employee's immediate supervisor.

7.3.2 If agreement is acceptable and expenses are under the
minimum spending limit set up by the Executive Director, signs
agreement and returns to immediate supervisor.

7.3.3 If agreement is acceptable but expenses are over the
minimum spending limit set up by the Executive Director.

7.4 Denies or grants equipment or service expenses. If denied,
provides the immediate supervisor written explanation of why
the expenses are not approved.

7.5 Informs employee in writing of denial or granting of

Executive Assistant . .
request for telecommuting arrangement and equipment and



service expenses if applicable, including date the arrangement
will be implemented and date it will end. If denied, provides
the employee with a written explanation of why the request
has been denied.

8.0 RESPONSIBILITIES:
8.1 Employees who telecommute or plan to telecommute are responsible for:

8.1.1 Ensuring that a high level of public service is maintained, and that abuses of
this policy do not occur.

8.1.2 Initiating a written request if they are interested in entering into a
telecommuting agreement.

8.1.3 Reporting to their immediate supervisor as early as possible if they are unable
to work on a telecommuting day.

8.1.4 Establishing and maintaining an adequate, safe and ergonomic workspace in
their home.

8.1.5 Maintaining appropriate care and security of any port equipment used at the
employee’s home. Employees who telecommute from home are subject to the
same internal port policies regarding the use of port provided equipment
(hardware and software) and services as that of employees at the regular worksite.
Employees shall return all port provided equipment promptly upon completion of
their telecommuting agreement. Employees are responsible for maintenance and
repair of their own equipment.

8.1.6 Maintaining the confidentiality of port information and documents,
preventing unauthorized access to any port system or information, and disposing of
work related documents in a manner that will not jeopardize the interests of the
port.

8.1.7 Any injuries to third parties and/or members of the employee’s family on the
employee’s premises during the employee’s telecommuting work period.

8.1.8 Abiding by all of the terms of King Port’s telecommuting policy.
8.2 Immediate Supervisor is responsible for:

8.2.1 Ensuring that a high level of public service is maintained, and that abuses of
this policy do not occur.

8.2.2 Reviewing employee requests for telecommuting, denying requests or
forwarding eligible requests to division manager for approval.

8.2.3 Providing written notice granting or denying requests and written notice for
termination of agreements to employees.



8.2.4 Communicating to the employee performance expectations and monitoring
accomplishment of those expectations.

8.2.5 Abiding by all of the terms of the Port of Kingston telecommuting policy.
8.4 Executive Director is responsible for:

8.4.1 Ensuring that a high level of public service is maintained, and that abuses of
this policy do not occur.

8.4.2 Allowing division, section or unit managers to approve minimal
telecommuting expenses based on specific dollar limit per employee per year.

8.4.3 Granting or denying employee requests for equipment and service expenses
that exceed the minimum standards set up by the department director. If they
deny an employee’s request, a reason must be provided to the employee’s
supervisor, so the supervisor may forward the reason to the employee.

8.4.4 Monitoring policy use by division managers to ensure that the policy is being
applied consistently.

8.4.5 Setting up additional procedures for division managers should the director
choose to review or track telecommuting agreements with their employees.

8.4.6 Abiding by all of the terms of the Port of Kingston telecommuting policy.

9.0 APPENDICES: Telecommuting Application



PORT OF KINGSTON Telecommuting Application

Employee Name Employee Title
Supervisor Name Hire Date
PROPOSED WORK SCHEDULE
IN-OFFICE HOURS Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday
TELECOMMUTING Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday
HOURS

Please answer the following questions:

1. Describe the type of work and specific tasks you propose to complete at home:

2. How will performance be assessed, and productivity be measured? What tracking method
will you use to report work completed at home?

| have read the Port of Kingston Telecommuting Policy and my supervisor and | agree that | have met all
eligibility criteria and requirements. | agree to abide by all of the participation guidelines in the
telecommuting policy document. | understand this agreement will expire in one year from the date
signed and can be terminated at any time.

Employee Signature Date

Executive Director Signature Date



PORT OF KINGSTON
PET / SERVICE ANIMAL POLICY

No pets are allowed in the workplace. Pursuant to the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and
Washington’s Law Against Discrimination (WLAD), the Port allows only service animals in the
workplace.

A service animal is a dog or miniature horse that is individually trained to do work or perform
tasks for the benefit of an individual with a disability. Employee should identify all service
animals to the Port. Service animals are working animals, not pets. The work or task performed
by the service animal must be directly related to the individual’s disability. Under RCW
49.60.214, it is a civil infraction for any person to misrepresent an animal as a service animal.

A service animal must be under the control of its handler. Service animals cannot wander
around, socialize, eat at the table, be fed, defecate or urinate inside, bark excessively, be
disruptive, run to or jump on people, or act aggressively toward people. The Port can refuse to
allow the service animal in the workplace if the service animal poses an immediate or
reasonably foreseeable risk or danger to people or property.


https://portofkingston.sharepoint.com/SitePages/Home.aspx
mailto:rayc@portofkingston.org
mailto:grege@portofkingston.org
https://portofkingston.sharepoint.com/SitePages/Home.aspx

Diversity, Equity and Inclusion Policy

The Port of Kingston is committed to fostering, cultivating and preserving a culture of diversity,
equity and inclusion.

Our human capital is the most valuable asset we have. The collective sum of the individual
differences, life experiences, knowledge, inventiveness, innovation, self-expression, unique
capabilities and talent that our employees invest in their work represents a significant part of not
only our culture, but our reputation and company’s achievement as well.

We embrace and encourage our employees’ differences in age, color, disability, ethnicity, family
or marital status, gender identity or expression, language, national origin, physical and mental
ability, political affiliation, race, religion, sexual orientation, socio-economic status, veteran
status, and other characteristics that make our employees unique.

The Port of Kingston diversity initiatives are applicable—but not limited—to our practices and
policies on recruitment and selection; compensation and benefits; professional development
and training; promotions; transfers; social and recreational programs; layoffs; terminations; and
the ongoing development of a work environment built on the premise of gender and diversity
equity that encourages and enforces:

e Respectful communication and cooperation between all employees.

o Teamwork and employee participation, permitting the representation of all groups and
employee perspectives.

o Work/life balance through flexible work schedules to accommodate employees’ varying
needs.

¢ Employer and employee contributions to the communities we serve to promote a greater
understanding and respect for the diversity.

All employees of The Port of Kingston have a responsibility to treat others with dignity and
respect at all times. All employees are expected to exhibit conduct that reflects inclusion during
work, at work functions on or off the work site, and at all other company-sponsored and
participative events. All employees are also required to attend and complete annual diversity
awareness training to enhance their knowledge to fulfill this responsibility.

Any employee found to have exhibited any inappropriate conduct or behavior against others
may be subject to disciplinary action.

Employees who believe they have been subjected to any kind of discrimination that conflicts
with the company’s diversity policy and initiatives should seek assistance from a supervisor or
an HR representative.



PORT OF KINGSTON

ABSENCE REPORTING POLICY

Port Employees must provide reasonable notice of an absence from work for the use of paid sick as
provided herein.

REASONABLE NOTICE FOR FORESEEABLE USE OF PAID SICK LEAVE

If an employee's absence is foreseeable, the employee must provide notice to the Executive Director
and the Harbormaster of their intent to take paid sick leave at least 10 days in advance, or as early as
practicable. Port Employees must submit a leave request on the Port of Kingston Team Site
https://portofkingston.sharepoint.com/SitePages/Home.aspx to include if possible, the expected
duration of the absence.

1. Harbormaster / Supervisor, Ray Carpenter: rayc@portofkingston.org ; 360-265-5186
2. Executive Director, Greg Englin: grege@portofkingston.org ; 360-265-5492

REASONABLE NOTICE FOR UNFORESEEABLE USE OF PAID SICK LEAVE

If an employee's absence is unforeseeable, the employee must contact the Executive Director and
the Harbormaster of their intent to take paid sick leave by telephone if possible before the required
start of their shift, or as soon as practicable. Port Employees must submit a leave on the Port of
Kingston Team Site here https://portofkingston.sharepoint.com/SitePages/Home.aspx on the day of
the employees return from paid sick leave

1. Harbormaster / Supervisor, Ray Carpenter@ 360-265-5186
2. Executive Director, Greg Englin@ 360-265-5492

o As a best practice, and if circumstances allow, employees should provide notice assoon
as the employee learns of the need for paid sick leave and between the hours of 7:00
AM and 7:00PM.

o Inthe eventitis not practicable to provide notice of an unforeseeable absence, a
person on the employee's behalf may provide such notice.

o If possible, this notification should include the expected duration of the absence.

Note: Verification may be required if an employee uses paid sick leave for more than three (3)
consecutive days for which the employee was required to work.



PORT OF KINGSTON

Policy Regarding Pandemic Flu

Purpose

The Port of Kingston strives to provide a safe and healthy workplace for all employees. This pandemic flu
policy outlines our overall response to a pandemic flu outbreak and our emergency-preparedness and
business continuity plan. It outlines specific steps the Port of Kingston takes to safeguard employees' health
and well-being during a pandemic while ensuring the Port’s ability to maintain essential operations and
continue providing essential services to our customers. In addition, it provides guidance on how we intend to
respond to specific operational and human resource issues in the event of a pandemic.

Pandemic Flu Defined

According to the federal Centers for Disease Control, the Occupational Safety and Health Administration, and
other organizations that monitor public health threats, influenza or flu is caused by a variety of influenza A
viruses. These viruses can cause different diseases: avian (or bird) flu, HIN1 (swine flu), pandemic influenza
COVID - 19, and seasonal flu for example.

Pandemic influenza can occur when mutating flu viruses become transmissible to humans, who generally lack
any natural immunity to fight off the viruses' adverse health effects. Because infected humans are so
contagious, they become the primary vehicle for pandemic influenza's spread. The more humans who become
contagious, the more widespread the disease becomes and the more rapid the spread is. Generally, pandemic
influenza occurs in waves, with each new group of infected people in turn infecting others. Each such wave of
infection can last as long as eight weeks, resulting in steadily increasing numbers of infections, and the disease
itself can take 12 months to 18 months to run its course through the population. Subsequently, the viruses
sparking pandemic influenza “settle” and thereafter can cause a type of seasonal flu (also known as “human
flu”) that produces the symptoms and illness many of us experience during annual “flu season.”

Pandemic influenza poses the most serious global threats to public health and our economy. It conceivably can
cost billions of dollars in productivity losses resulting from absenteeism, payouts of sick leave or workers'
compensation, and lost sales; disrupt transportation and communication services on which we all depend; and
impede delivery of necessary goods and services. Inability to predict when such a disease might strike and
with what severity makes it incumbent on the Port to consider how our business might be affected and to
articulate what needs to be done to respond to an outbreak.

Identification of Essential Personnel

The Port has identified and designated as essential personnel certain employees whose jobs are vitally
important to our continued operation in emergencies. We expect only designated essential personnel to be
available for work during an influenza pandemic. We acknowledge, however, that even essential personnel
might become ill and unavailable to work or not be able to reach our worksite because of conditions beyond
their own or our control. Consequently, the Port and its subsidiaries, affiliates, and industry partners have



	Agenda 2021-07-28 DRAFT
	2021-06-23 Minutes
	2021-06-29 Special Meeting Minutes
	2021-07-06 Special Meeting Minutes
	Warrants
	DRAFT Employee Handbook l July 2021
	ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT OF
	Definitions – 1.00
	Recruitment, Hiring, Assignment, and Termination – 2.00
	Employee Education - 3.00
	Employee Personnel Files – 4.00
	Leaves of Absence with Pay – 5.00
	Leaves of Absence without Pay – 6.00
	Sick Leave – 7.00
	Special Pay – 10.00
	Legal Holidays – 11.00
	Overtime – 12.00
	Wages, Salaries and Pay Disbursal – 13.00
	Employee Benefits – 14.00
	Employee Complaint and Grievance Policy – 15.00
	Employee Performance – 16.00
	Work Performance Evaluations – 17.00
	Anti-Discrimination and Harassment – 18.00
	Alcohol & Drug Free Workplace Policy – 19.00
	Whistleblower Policy – 20.00
	Travel Time – 21.00
	Preventing Workplace Violence – 22.00

	If an employee reasonably believes an imminent threat to the safety of themselves or others exists, the employee should call “911” and contact the proper law enforcement authorities without first coordinating with management.
	Appearance and Dress Code – 23.00
	Employee Recognition – 24.00
	Computers and Information Technology Resources – 25.00
	Executive Director’s Authority – 26.00

	APPENDIX A - Organizational Chart.pdf
	Table 1

	APPENDIX E - ABSENCE REPORTING POLICY.pdf
	REASONABLE NOTICE FOR FORESEEABLE USE OF PAID SICK LEAVE
	REASONABLE NOTICE FOR UNFORESEEABLE USE OF PAID SICK LEAVE
	Note: Verification may be required if an employee uses paid sick leave for more than three (3) consecutive days for which the employee was required to work.



